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SHAREHOLDERS MEETING
The annual meeting of holders of common
stock willbe held on Tuesday, April 3, 1990, at
10:30 a.m. at thc South Avenue office of the
Company in Poughkeepsie, New York. Notice
of this meeting, together with the proxy
statement, proxy and this Annual Report, was
mailed to shareholders on March 2, 1990. The
management welcomes thc personal attendance
of shareholders at the meeting.

ADDITIONALINFORMATION
ABOUT OUR COVER
The watercolor on our cover
shows the Hudson River and
our Roseton and Danskammer
Generating Plants as viewed
from the Chelsea Yacht Club.
It was created by Graphics
Specialist Chct Karpinski, a
25.year employee and dcsigncr
of our annual reports.

Shareholders may obtain without charge
of Central Hudson's annual rcport to
thc Securities and Exchange Commission, on
Form 10.K, by writing to: Gladys L Cooper,
Secretary, at the Corporation's general ofiices.
A comprehensive statistical supplement to the
Company's 1989 annual report, containing key
financial and operating results for a 1&year
period, willbe available soon upon request
to Ms. Cooper.
a copy

FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS FOR 1989
Operating Revenues
Net Income
Earnings Per Share
Average Shares Outstanding
Declared Dividends Per Share
Total Assets
Electric Sales —Own
Territory (kwh.)
Natural Gas Firm Sales
(thousands of cubic feet)
Electric Customers (average)
Firm Gas Customers (average)

1989
$ 470,002,000
$ 39,117,000
$ 2.28
14,657,000
$ 1.76
1,073,695,000
$

1988
$ 438,385,000
$ 43,804,000
$ 2.63
14,473,000
$ 1.715
$ 1,046,290,000

4,746,216,000

4,583,788,000

4%

8,610,000
248,407
54,901

8,279,000
244,165
53,687

4%

7%

(11%)
(13%)
1%

3%
3%

2%
2%
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March 2, 1990
To My Fellow Shareholders:
Central Hudson has been well served for almost 90 years by a fundamental business philosophy
that places emphasis on quality of service and customer satisfaction. As described in the text of this
Annual Report, the Company continued to build on these values during 1989.
We also continued to provide support to the balanced economic development of this region,
attracting and retaining enterprises whose activities are compatible with its cultural, historic and
aesthetic values. An important part of this development is the emergence of Stewart International
Airport as a regional commercial airport and business center.

Dividends paid to shareholders in 1989 increased 3.5%, from $ 1.70 per share in 1988 to $ 1.76 in
1989, and the ratio of market price to book value increased from 101% at December 31, 1988 to 108%
at December 31, 1989. Furthermore, the Company continued to remain in a good cash position.

While we were most disappointed in our earnings performance, which saw a decline in earnings
per share from $ 2.63 in 1988 to $ 2.28 in 1989, 1989 was still a year of major accomplishment. The
earnings reductions were primarily the result of several factors: the overall slowing of the economy
and the unusually warm winter and relatively cool summer, lower sales growth and increased
operating expenses at the Nine Mile 2 Plant.
On the positive side, 1989 marked the successful completion of our Energy Strategy for the 80s,
which was to reduce by at least one half our dependence on imported fuel oil for electric generation.
It also marked the implementation of our future strategy for the coming decade, which is to provide a
dependable and competitively priced supply of energy for our customers'rowing needs.

To this end, we received regulatory approval in 1989 to construct an interconnection with a
major natural gas pipeline which will enable us to obtain up to 100,000 mcf of natural gas a day for the
Roseton Generating Plant during the non-heating season. Further, we are continuing to seek a
resolution to the plan we filed with the Public Service Commission to begin the early acquisition of
additional ownership in the Roseton Plant.
On January 24, 1990, the parties who had been negotiating a settlement to resolve open and

current Nine Mile 2 issues reached an oral agreement in principle on all outstanding issues. The
parties are proceeding to prepare a written settlement agreement for submission to the PSC. Among
other things, final approval of such an agreement would bring to a close all outstanding issues related
to the cost of construction of Nine Mile 2 and the 1986 Settlement Agreement. The Company,
however, cannot give any assurance that the PSC will approve such a settlement agreement.
It has been our long-standing belief that offering good customer service is in the best interest of
our shareholders. The Company and its employees remain committed to meeting our
for safe, reliable, quality service at competitive prices. We are determined to strive to earn the
authorized return on the equity invested in the core business and to maximize the return on
investment in our energy-related subsidiary operations. To do this, we will avail ourselves of all
customers'eeds

reasonable business opportunities.
We firmlybelieve that effective management of our business is vital to our success. While
changes in federal and state regulations are impacting the very structure of our industry, we remain
committed to the market-driven philosophy which will enable us to meet the competition.

It is a philosophy which has

served us well for nine decades. We are confident that it will insure
our success in the future, enabling us to meet the energy needs of our customers while providing
increased value to our shareholders.

Verytrulyyours,

Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

'~ ervice
From our major industrial customers to the net@est
homeowner, our business is devoted to providing a valued
service. Our success as a company depends in large measure
on their satisfaction.
ENERGY SIRATEGY
During the decade of the 80s, Central Hudson adopted an energy strategy
designed to reduce its dependence on imported oil used for electric generation.
This strategy was successfully carried out largely through the conversion of our
Danskammer Generating Plant to use coal and natural gas and the completion of
the Nine Mile 2 Nuclear Plant.
While we entered the decade with a fuel mix of 95 percent oil and five percent
hydro, we end it with a mix of 43 percent oil, 33 percent coal, 11 percent natural
gas, 9 percent nuclear and 4 percent hydro sources.
For the future, we intend to continue to pursue our fuel diversification strategy,
assuring our customers that we will be able to meet their needs and take advantage
of favorable price and supply alternatives.
Our plan to add natural gas-firing capability at the Roseton Generating Plant will
enable us to further implement this strategy. When this project is complete in 1992,
our dependence on fuel oil willbe further reduced. The use of natural gas will also
provide an environmental benefit through reductions in plant stack emissions.
As noted in our last Annual Report, we also plan to increase our share of the ownership and output of Roseton through an agreement with the Niagara Mohawk Power
Corporation. Under the terms of this agreement, the Company would begin purchasing Niagara Mohawk's 300-megawatt share in 10 equal installments in 1995. This
schedule closely matches our projected increase in electric demand. In 2004, when
Niagara Mohawk would have the option of repurchasing this capacity, we in turn
have the option to acquire Consolidated Edison's 480-megawatt share in the plant.
The Roseton buy-back willenable us to meet our customers'eeds in the most
economic manner, from an existing facility with a record of reliable and efficient
performance, and without increased impact on the environment. The plan requires
approval by the Public Service Commission. As part of that approval process, the
Company has agreed to seek competitive bids from other power producers to
ensure that the proposal is the best available supply option. This process is
currently under way.

'~
3

erving an Expanding
Network of Industries

The Mid-Hudson Region continues to be a major growth area in
New York State, thanks to a combination ofpositive factors including
a skilled labor force, a superb inpastructure and below-average electric
and gas rates. One ofthe many new industries which has located in and
around Stewart International Airport in Orange County is Metal
Container Corporation, a division ofAnheuser-Busch. Its 300,000square foot can manufacturing Plant is a major gas customer.
Steps to meet future demands are being accompanied by other measures
designed to help manage electric growth, principally to forestall the need to build
new generating facilities. Through our Demand Side Management programs, we
expect to reduce our projected 1995 summer peak by five percent, or approximately
50 megawatts, and reduce total energy use in that year by three percent.
Beginning in 1990, we willbe spending more than $ 6 million a year on demand
side management programs emphasizing incentives to residential, commercial and
industrial customers for improvements in their energy efficiency. A major corporate
objective is therefore to work with the Public Service Commission in developing an
innovative rate structure to prevent any deterioration in our financial position which
.could result from revenues lost through these important programs.

NINE MILE 2
In August, the Company and the other cotenants in the Nine Mile 2 Nuclear
Plant signed a new operating agreement which vests with a Management
Committee the authority to approve annual plans and budgets for the plant. This
committee, consisting of the presidents of each cotenant, also has oversight
review authority in establishing budgets, project priorities and performance
goals for Nine Mile 2.
The committee over an 18-month period will also be studying the possibility of
establishing a separate company to operate Nine Mile 2, in which the Company has
a nine percent share.

SIRATEGIC PIANNING
To an ever-increasing extent, our business is undergoing major changes. It is the
function of strategic planning to anticipate those changes and prepare the Company
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erving a Healthy
Commercial Economy

With its strong economy and low unemployment rate,
the Mid-Hudson continues to attract major commercial develoPment.
borough our Executive Ambassador Program, we maintain close personal
ties with major commercial and industrial customers, such as the Westage
Business Center, a $ 100 million mixed use commercial complex
under development in southern Dutchess County.
to deal with them in as effective and profitable a manner as possible.
The strategic planning process at Central Hudson is intended to assist the
organization in defining its key corporate objectives and developing goals and
action plans to address issues necessary to achieve those objectives.
Responsibility for the process rests with the Strategic Planning Committee,
comprised of members of senior management. The Committee continually reviews
the Company's mission and business purpose and each year identifies specific
Corporate objectives which address the needs of our major constituencies:
customers, employees, shareholders and communities. Issues which will or may
impact the Company are then reviewed with members of management so that
coordinated action plans can be implemented.
Some of the issues on which we will be focusing in 1990 are: measures to
increase shareholder value; responding to regulatory changes; expanded levels of
service and improved reliability for our customers; assessing the market for, and
our role in, the developing independent power and cogeneration market; managing
Nine Mile 2, and evaluating and responding to the impact of new or proposed
environmental regulations.

QUALHY/PRODUCTIVITYPROGRAM
Quality enhancement provides opportunities to increase the value of our products
and services, while improving our competitive position, through improved productivity. We are expanding our Corporate Work Management Program with a corporatewide Quality/Productivity Program which will involve every employee. One of the
nation's leading consultants in the field of quality has been engaged to assist in the
development and implementation of this program, beginning in early 1990.
We have recently completed a long-range assessment of how Corporate
Information System resources, can assist in meeting our strategic corporate

Chairman and CEO John Mack and Ted Petrillo,
Presz'dent of Westage Development Corporation, in the
atrium of the jI,rst ofsix 120,000-square foot once
buildings planned at the center.
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erving a Growing Demand
for Natural Gas

Natural gas is unequalled for both heating and cooking, and by
developing an adequate suPPly Pom multiPle sources we'e been able to
expand our existing markets and ojen new ones. Our 1987 zntroductzon
ofnatural gas into Putnam County was followed uP in l989 with a
major pipeline extension to greatly zncrease our marketing potential.
By working closely with developers, we'e able to ensure that our services
are ready when they are.
objectives. A multi-disciplinary task force has identified a number of areas where
enhancements in the use of computers will lead to greater effectiveness and
efficiency. These include: construction management; power plant maintenance;
maintaining system maps; and processing trouble orders during
service interruptions.

CONSTRUCTION BUDGET
The Company's construction budget for 1990 totals $ 80 million, which represents
an increase of approximately $ 35 million over our expenditures in 1989. Most of the
increase is related to additions to or improvements in existing electric and gas
facilities and measures to increase operating efficiency and improve reliability.
These include initial work on five new substations to serve growing loads in the
areas of Stewart International Airport, Orange County; East Iushkill and
LaGrangeville, Dutchess County; Highland, Ulster County; and New Baltimore,
Greene County.
In addition, we willbegin work in 1990 on an expansion and improvements to our production plant computers and our System Operations and corporate computer centers.
Construction will also begin on an expansion to our Fishkill Operating
Headquarters which will house the Customer Services functions for our Beacon
District. Consolidating these functions will both enhance customer service and
improve operating efficiency.
The capital budget also includes funding of the first phase of the natural gas
transmission interconnections between the proposed Iroquois gas line and the
Roseton Generating Plant. This project will also provide a significant reinforcement
of our gas transmission system.
Based on present projections, approximately 70 percent of the 1990 expenditures
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'~ erving the Region's
Historic Resources
Kingston, first capital ofNew 'Fork State, is home to the Hudson
River Maritime Center, which celebrates the river's place in history.
The redevelopment of the waterPont area surrounding the center, which
includes the undergrounding ofutilityservices, has led to its designation
as the Strand Historic District, recalling the name by which it was
known a century ago.
willbe funded from internal sources. The balance willcome from short-term
borrowing and temporary cash investments outstanding at the end of 1989.

FUEL SUPPLY
As a result of the implementation of our Energy Strategy for the

80s, Central
Hudson has highly diversified its fuels used in electric generation. Fuel oil, coal,
natural gas, nuclear and hydro sources are all part of our generating mix. We are
no longer overly dependent on a single source.
In addition to negotiating favorable contracts for secure supplies of fossil fuels,
we continue to purchase oil, natural gas and coal on the spot market, taking
advantage of spot market prices to help further reduce prices to our customers.
Although a wildcat strike among coal miners interrupted shipments for about 30
days in late summer, the ability to burn natural gas at our Danskammer plant
enabled us to conserve our coal supplies until shipments resumed. We have since
increased on-site storage capacity from a 45- to a 6May supply.
We have also taken steps to increase the supply of natural gas required to meet
our growing customer demands. We have supplemented our firm contracts with
three pipeline suppliers for increased storage capacity and a contract for firm
liquefied natural gas vapor service. Together, these latter sources have increased
our ability to supply peak day requirements by 9,000 Mcf a day.
A further 20,000 Mcf a day has been contracted for from the Iroquois Gas
Transmission System, which is scheduled for completion in late 1991.

RATE PROCEEDINGS
One electric rate case was concluded and another was filed during 1989.
In May, the Public Service Commission approved a $ 2.7 million rate reduction for
our commercial and industrial customers. As part of this case, we have filed plans
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Mayor Richard White (right) isjoined in the
Strand Historic District by Resident Customer Relations
Manager Frank Ostrander and District Representative
John O'onnor.
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'~ erving a Year-Round

Tourism Area
The Mid-Hudson Valley is a magnet for touristsjom this country
and abroad, with a upside range ofhistoric, scenic, cultural and
recreational activities. One of the netvest attractions for visitors is
Montgomery Place in Dutchess County, oPerated by Historic Hudson
Valley to preserve examples ofthe grand estates overlooking the river.
to implement tim~f-use rates for our 5,000 largest residential customers to
encourage them to shift electric consumption to off-peak periods. This program
willbe put in place in 1990 as part of a state-wide effort to control future
electric demand.
On May 26, the Company filed a request with the Public Service Commission for
a 5.7 percent increase in electric rates, its first since 1986, with revised rates
expected to take effect in June 1990. This equates to an annual average increase of
1.5 percent, well below the rate of inflation.
Ifapproved as filed, the new rates would produce additional annual revenues of
$ 21.6 million. We believe this is the minimum relief necessary to enable the
Company to maintain a reasonable level of financial integrity. (See Note 3 to the
Iunancial Statements.)
By stabilizing electric rates and by placing a freeze on gas rates through 1990,
the Company has been able to improve its competitive position. Indeed, our
residential electric rates are now the third lowest in New York State.

ELECTRIC MARKETING
During the five-year period ending in December 1988, our electric sales grew at
an average annual rate of 5.5 percent. Although we added 2,940 residential and
1,071 commercial and industrial customers in 1989, the rate of growth declined to
3.5 percent. This reflects both the overall slowing of the economy and the effects of
a mild winter and cool summer. While we do not forecast a return to that higher
sales growth, we still expect economic conditions and long-term sales growth in our
area to remain above the national and state averages.
Since we have become a summer-peaking company, we have been successful in
selling excess capacity during the winter to several New England utilities. During
1989, revenues from these sales exceeded $ 1 million, of which 20 percent was
returned to our shareholders and 80 percent to our customers.
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Montgomery Place Site Manager Cynthia Grant confers
with General Line Foreman Ron Casscles as Linemen
Bob Faulk (lejt) and Charles Sinsabaugh prepare to
work on a distribution circuit.
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erving Beyond the
Workplace

From volunteer firemen to Scout leaders, Pom school board members
to United Way agency volunteers, Central Hudson employees actively
support their communities. In 1989, the first annual Community
Service Awards were presented to recognize this activity and to
encourage even greater participation. They've recipients were chosen
from among 27 employees nominated for the award.
In 1989, the International Business Machines Corporation dedicated a new
Advanced Semiconductor Technology Center at its East Fishkill location. This
325,000-square-foot building houses the world's largest, most advanced facility for
computer chip design, development and prototype production. Here, IBM will
develop the technology needed to produce faster and more powerful computers in
the future. The East Fishkill site now contains more than five million square feet of
space, with a peak electric demand approaching 100 megawatts.

NATURALGAS MARKETING
Our natural gas marketing program continued to meet with success during 1989
as sales increased 3.8 percent over 1988 and 1,215 new customers were added.
Marketing goals were achieved in both existing homes, where 536 were converted
from fuel oil or propane to natural gas, and in small commercial businesses, where
conversions from competing fuels have the annual potential of 80,000 Mcf of firm
load. We see this market continuing to expand as environmental regulations make
on-site tank storage of fossil fuels more difficultfor the average business.
Major gas main extensions were continued in the Town of Carmel, Putnam
County, and begun in our newest franchise, the Town of Coxsackie, Greene County.
The former, an 8.5-mile line, will bring gas service to the Village of Carmel in 1990.
In Coxsackie, a 7,000-foot main extension enabled us to immediately provide
service to two major commercial customers who heat a total of 400,000
square feet of space.
In Orange County, in a jointly financed venture with the New York State Electric
and Gas Corporation, we are nearing completion of an 8-mile gas line between
Goshen and Walden. The line will carry gas to NYSEG's service area in Walden and
also permit us to increase the number of customers we serve in the towns of
Hamptonburgh and Montgomery.

Our Community Service Award reczpzents (from leg):
Conrad Flickenschz'ld, Stores Supervisor (Scoutizzg Commissioner);
Vivian Wz'llzams, Customer Services Representative (Mended Hearts);
Robert Hansut, Transportation Manager (Eingston Hospital Trustee);
Barbara Taylor, Customer Servzces Representatzve (Business Ez
Professional Women); Fred Schmalberger, Servz'ce Supervzsor
(I.z'teracy Volunteers

ofAmerica).

AREA DEVELOPMENT
Our own progress is closely linked with that of the region we serve. Our area
development efforts are aimed at not only supporting regional growth, but doing so
in a manner which will enable it to retain those qualities of life which make the MidHudson Valley attractive to those who live here or seek to move here. We do so by
maintaining a supporting —
and in many cases a leadership —
role with local and
state economic development organizations and with Mid-Hudson Pattern, a
regional planning body.
One major focus of our area development activities in recent years has centered
around Stewart International Airport. Situated at the juncture of two interstate
highways, it has attracted substantial commercial and industrial development. The
announcement by American Airlines that it will begin several passenger flights
daily from Stewart to American's hub cities of Chicago and Raleigh-Durham, North
Carolina, in April 1990 should further improve this area's attractiveness as a center
for commerce and industry.

OPERATING IMPROVEMENTS
In October, we installed a lightning monitoring system, a major improvement in
our ability to anticipate certain types of storms. The nationwide network to which
the system is connected was developed by the Electric Power Research Institute
and the State University of New York. It provides computerized location and pattern
of lightning strikes, allowing our System Operators to monitor such storms well
before they affect our area. Such information is crucial to our advance
emergency planning.
In November, our electric crews began a new procedure aimed at simplifying
work on distribution circuits. Under a collective bargaining agreement reached
with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, linemen are working
directly on energized lines up to 7,620 volts. Employing safe work techniques using
rubber gloves, rather than live line tools, they can work more quickly and easily,
while still maintaining strict safety standards.
At our Danskammer Generating Plant, we have installed staff-the-art, on-line
monitoring and control systems on the Unit 3 and 4 turbines. These will provide
plant operators with timely and reliable information on turbine operating
conditions, an important part of our predictive maintenance program. We also
completed an expansion of our coal-thawing shed and are firing the new heating
units with natural gas. This project has substantially reduced the time and labor
needed to unload frozen coal from rail cars in winter.
In all of our operations, we are making a concerted effort to reduce waste. At our
Eltings Corners warehouse, we have established a recycling center for surplus
1989 FUEL MIX
(Capabilities)
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paper, wire, meters, street lights and other scrap. Operated for us by the Ulster
County Association of Retarded Citizens (UARC), this operation returned $ 222,000
to the Company in 1989. It has the added benefit of providing meaningful
employment to a number of UARC clients.

CUSTOMER SERVICE
Several new or improved measures were instituted in 1989 as part of our goal of
continuing to improve service and reliability to our customers.
Since trees are the most frequent cause of electric service interruptions, we are
increasing the frequency of our trimming program to a three-year cycle, with a
complete geographic area done at one time.
We also began a major program to improve service reliability in central and
northeastern Dutchess County. Over the next three years, this $ 2.1 million project
willreinforce the transmission system and reduce customers'xposure to
interruptions.
We are in the process of establishing extended hours at our Customer Service
offices so that our representatives are available to take customer calls outside of
normal business hours and on Saturdays. At the same time, a new telephone
system is being installed in our Poughkeepsie headquarters which will expand our
ability to handle customer calls.
A new Customer Service office was opened in Catskill in the spring of 1989,
consolidating that operation with our Operating Headquarters. This has greatly
improved communications between these interdependent functions.
Resolving customer complaints and analyzing their cause is a major focus of
Customer Services. We have in place a team approach to resolving and learning
from customer complaints, seeking to identify the causes and correcting them.

CONSUMER OUTNB,CH PROGRAMS
Through our Community Relations and Consumer Outreach Section, we have
established a number of programs to educate consumers and assist customers with
special needs. These latter programs, which also benefit the entire community, are
directed towards senior citizens, consumers under financial pressure, the disabled,
and those who are illiterate or semi-literate.
Many of these programs are carried out in cooperation with private and
governmental social agencies. We meet regularly with these groups to evaluate
our existing programs and to determine what new needs currently exist in the
community. In addition, an annual Outreach Forum brings representatives from
all of these groups together to exchange ideas and information. Evaluation and
assistance is also provided by our Consumer Advisory Panel.
Our efforts to help less fortunate members of the community were recognized in
September when we received the President's Citation for Private Sector Initiatives
for the second successive year. The citation recognizes outstanding contributions to
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the American spirit of volunteerism and community action and is symbolized by a
special flag bearing the slogan "We Can We Care" which we now proudly display
at our General Offices.
The citation was for our "Get Help" Program, funded by the Company and
administered by The Salvation Army. It provides financial assistance to customers
who need help in paying their utilitybills. Since it began in 1985, the program has
awarded grants to 1,639 customers for more than $ 217,000.
The Outreach Section also administers the Company's Speakers Bureau, which
makes presentations on various energy-related topics to community organizations,
and our energy education programs for teachers and students.

—

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
We support a wide range of research and development activities on the state and
national levels, such as those conducted by the Electric Power Research Institute,
the New York State Energy Research and Development Authority, the Empire State
Electric Energy Research Corporation, the New York Gas Group, the Gas Research
Institute and the American Gas Association.
In addition, we also have a number of R&D projects being conducted internally.
Many are related to improving productivity and efficiency and reducing
environmental impacts. However, we are also pursuing research aimed at providing
greater benefits to the customer through stabilizing the cost of service, evaluating
the potential of supplemental energy technologies, and capturing additional
markets for natural gas and electricity while promoting efficient end-use.
One project with potentially broad customer application is a Residential Energy
Load Management System, which would allow homeowners to program the
operation of electric appliances and heating systems to shift much of their usage to
off-peak hours. Equipment for field testing of this system was placed in the homes
of 10 of our customers beginning in late 1989. This research project is being
conducted jointly with ESEERCO, NYSERDA and EPRI, and is being carried out by
Central Hudson and the three other downstate utilities.
A project with significant applications, developing a computer-based geographic
information system, was initiated in late 1989. This technology will enable us to plot
on a topographic map all of our facilities, customer locations and other items of
importance contained in our Data Base Management System.
One important application for the resulting maps would be the automatic
accumulation, retrieval and display of customer reported outages and subsequent
direct dispatching of field forces. On-board computers in vehicles, giving our crews
access to the system, would greatly enhance our storm restoration efforts, as well
as our day-to-day operations.
With a State Energy Master Plan which puts greater emphasis on the role of
natural gas for transportation, our research on compressed natural gas vehicles will
be expanded into outside fleet operations. Through a joint project with several
other state utilities, we will be purchasing four dedicated CNG vehicles for use by
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taxi and commuter services. In addition, we plan to expand the number of CNGconversion vehicles in our own fleet Natural gas is not only a cleaner fuel for
transportation, but measured against gasoline or diesel alternatives, it offers
substantial savings on fuel costs.

SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS
Two of Central Hudson's subsidiaries are ideally positioned to benefit from the
movement by utilities, consumers and regulatory agencies towards improvements
in end-use management, cogeneration and independent power generation.
Central Hudson Enterprises Corporation (CHEC) is a full-service energy
company offering its clients engineering evaluation, design, construction, financing
and operational services. It was successful in competitive bids on contracts totaling
nearly $ 1 million for energy conservation services to the Center for Disease
Control and Gateway Center, both in Boston, Massachusetts. In December 1989,
CHEC was also awarded a major contract for demand side management services by
Orange 88 Rockland Utilities, Inc.
During the year, CHEC completed construction of a $ 450,000 energy
management system for the Berkshire Medical Center in Pittsfield, Massachusetts,
and completed final design on a $ 1.5 million energy conservation and cogeneration
project for the Syracuse City School District. Meanwhile, a 5-megawatt cogenerator
it installed for a Massachusetts lime manufacturer completed its first year of
operation with an 89 percent availability factor.
A second subsidiary, Central Hudson Cogeneration (Cencogen), is primarily an
investor in small power-producing facilities.
In early 1989, the second hydroelectric plant financed and owned in partnership
by Cencogen entered commercial operation. The Hydro-Kennebec plant on the
Kennebec River in Maine, in which Cencogen has a 7 percent interest, produces
15,000 kilowatts of electricity for the Central Maine Power Company.
The West Delaware Hydroelectric Plant in Sullivan County, in which Cencogen
has a 50 percent interest, has been operating since late 1988. In its first full year of
operation, this plant produced more than 28 million kilowatt-hours of electricity.

SIOCK INVESMENT PROGRAMS
Our Dividend Reinvestment Plan for shareholders, instituted in 1982, continues
to help us reduce our borrowing requirements and strengthen our capital
structure. At the end of 1989, there were 8,834 shareholders enrolled in the Plan.
During the year, the Company realized $ 3,773,000 in reinvested dividends or
voluntary cash payments through the program.
In September, the Public Service Commission authorized the reinstatement of
our Customer Stock Purchase Plan, through which customers may invest up to
$ 2,000 in common stock during any one quarter. This Plan had been offered
from 1983 through June 1987, with customers investing nearly $ 7,000,000
during that perio'd.
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ABOUT
CENTRAL HUDSON
Central Hudson is an investorowned electric and gas utility
founded in 1900 and serving a
population of approximately
605,000 in a 2,600-square-mile
area of New York's Mid-Hudson
Valley. Our service area begins
25 miles north of New York City
and ends 10 miles south of Albany,
comprising parts of the counties of
Albany, Columbia, Dutchess,
Greene, Orange, Putnam,
Sullivan and Ulster. Major
population centers include
the cities of Poughkeepsie,
Kingston, Newburgh, Beacon
and the Village of Catskill.
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The Company clearly recognized the effects of a slowing
national and regional economy in 1989. Although the sales
of electricity within Central Hudson's service territory
increased for the seventh consecutive year and firm sales
of natural gas grew for the fourth consecutive year, the rate
of growth of both products slowed considerably. The
commercial market for both gas and electricity held up the
best while the residential market showed the greatest
softening. The Company continues to serve a growing
economic area.
Earnings per share decreased 35 cents from 1988
earnings principally due to moderating sales growth and
expense increases not provided for in the rate-making
process. The price of the Company's common stock
increased to $ 23.50 per share from its 1988 closing price

of $ 21.50.
The Company successfully converted to a fixed rate and
remarketed $ 33.4 of tax-exempt pollution control revenue
bonds in the fall of 1989. Retained earnings increased $ 7.6
million, or 31%. At December 31, 1989, the Company had no
short-term debt outstanding and had $ 10.5 million invested
in short-term marketable securities.

Earnings Per Share: (Page 43)
Earnings per share of common stock were $ 2.28 in 1989,
a decrease of 35 cents, or 13% from 1988.

Dividends Per Share: (Pages

23 and 30)
in 1989 increased 4% to
shareholders
Dividends paid to
share
in 1988. No portion of
1.76
share
from
1.70
per
per
$
$
the 1989 dividend constitutes a return of capital.

Common Stock:
The Dividend Reinvestment Plan and Customer Stock
Purchase Plan raised $ 4.0 million. These issuances
increased the number of common shares outstanding to
14,741,348. At December 31, 1989, a share of common stock
was selling at $ 23.50 while the book value per share was
$ 21.76.

At December

Electric Sales: (Page

44)

Electric sales within the service territory increased

3.5%

in 1989. Sales to residential and commercial customers
increased 1% and 4%, respectively, due to increased
customer growth. Industrial sales increased 6% primarily
due to increased usage by existing customers.
Gas Sales: (Page 44)
Firm sales of natural gas increased 4% in 1989. Sales to
residential and commercial customers increased 2% and 3%,
respectively. Firm sales to industrial customers increased
30% primarily due to a full year's operation of a container
manufacturing facility in the service territory.

Hate Proceedings: (Page 32)
As more fully discussed in Note 3, the Company's
financial results reflect the provisions contained in the
Stipulation and Agreement approved by the PSC for the rate
year ended July 31, 1989. Such Agreement provided for a
reduction in base electric rates of $ 2,689,000 for the period
August 1, 1988 through July 31, 1989. The approving PSC
order authorized a return on common equity of 13.0%.
On May 26, 1989, the Company filed a request with the
PSC to increase its rates for electric service to produce
additional annual revenue of $ 21.6 million, or 5.7%. The PSC
is expected to render a decision on this filing and issue an
implementing order in May 1990 which willbe effective for
the period May 1, 1990 to April 30, 1991.

Nine Mile 2 Plant: (Page 29)
As of December 31, 1989, the Company had $ 517 million
invested in Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile 2 Nuclear Station
(NMP-2). Of this amount, $ 301 million has been allowed in
rate base by the Public Service Commission and $ 6 million
represents investment subject to accrual of Allowance for
Funds used During Construction or carrying charges until
included in rate base. The balance, $ 210 million represents
disallowed investment. An aftertax provision for the
disallowed investment in the amount of $ 169.3 million was
written off against income in 1987. As more fully described
in Note 2, such amounts may be subject to modest
adjustment pursuant to an oral agreement in principle
reached among various parties concerning unresolved
NMP-2 issues. (See Note 2)

Taxes: (Page 46)
In 1989, the Company incurred $ 71.1 million for
operating taxes levied by federal, state and local
governments.

31, 1989, the Company's shares were

held approximately 47% by individuals registered with the
Registrar and Transfer Agent, 4% by institutional investors,
and 49% in "street name." Total return to shareholders in
1989:amounted to $ 3.76 (17%) per share, consisting of $ 2.00
of market appreciation and $ 1.76 of cash dividends.
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Five-Year Summary of Consolidated Operations and Selected Financial Data*
(Thousands of Dollars)

1989

1988

1987

1986

1985

Operating Revenues:
Electric.......................
Gas.

Total ..

S 403,235

S 379,249

$ 374,951

66 767
470 002

59 136
438 385

54 126
429 077

$ 377,103
61 448
438 551

263,104
23,939
35,344
51,240
19 828
393 455

232,243
23,813
31,938
47,953
21 843
357 790

223,916
20,632
28,163
44,379
31 476
848 566

240,196
19,733
24,894
42,551
39 454
~866 82

316,553
14,884
24,249
41,675
38 082
435 443

76 547

80 595

80 511

71 723

69 359

463
910

403
703

21,594
6,690

18,644
6,570

3 419
4 792

2 739

81,339

84,440

42 222

4D 636

39,117

43,804

39,117
5 698

43,804
5 753

33,419
25 825
7,594
24 730

38,051
24 851
13,200
11 530

8 32324

S

436,652
68 15D
504 8D2

Operating Expenses:
Operations ..
Maintenance.
Depreciation and amortization.
Operating taxes.
Federal income tax ......................
Total

Operating Income

Other Income and Deductions:
Equity component of AFDC
Federal income tax - credit
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90 ...
Other - net.
Total

Income before Interest Charges and Cumulative
Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle;........

Interest Charges ..
Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect
of a Change in Accounting Principle......................
Cumulative Effect on Prior Years of Adoption of
SFAS

3,371
(71)
(51,919)
2 198
~46 421

90.

Net Income (Loss).
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Income (Loss) Available for
Common Stock.
Dividends Declared on Common Stock.....................
Amount Retained in the Business ...............................
Retained Earnings - beginning of year........................
Retained Earnings - end of year...................................
Common Stock:
Average Shares Outstanding (000's) ............................
Income (Loss) Available Per Average Share ...............
Dividends Declared Per Share
Book Value Per Share (atyear end) ....,.....................,

Total Assets.
Long-Term Debt.
Cumulative Preferred Stock.
Common Equity..
PRO FORMA EFFECT OF SFAS 90 BEING APPLIED
RETROACHVELY FOR NMP-2 DISALLOWANCE
(NOTE 2):
Income (Loss) Available for Common Stock...............
Income (Loss) Available Per Average Share
of Common Stock

371

~604

28 655

24 610

34,090

100,378

93,969

42 559

35 494

34 297

(8,469)

64,884

59,672

101 475
(109,944)
5 593

64,884
5 614

59,672
6 184
53,488
33 945

59,270
40 393
18,877
145 856

19,543
126 313

8 24730

(115,537)
37 666
(153,203)
164 733
11 530

3 164733

3 145856

14,657
$ 2.28
$ 1.76
$ 21.76

14,473
$ 2.63
$ 1.715
$ 21.24

14,230
$ (8.12)
$ 2.645
$ 20.35

13,207
$ 4.49
$ 2.96
$ 31.18

11,458
$ 4.67
$ 2.9s
$ 29.49

$ 1,073,695
447,440
81,030
320,709

$ 1,046,290
448,605
81,030
309,269

$ 1,157.698
439.725
81,030
439,860

$ 1,038,524
444,900

$ 1,024,371
429,958
81,030
292,240

81,030
356,084

S (14,062)

S

1s,270

S

(1,512)

(.99)

S

1.01

S

(.13)

S

* This summary should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto included in the "Financial
Section" of this Annual Report.
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FINANCIALSECTION 1989 ANNUALREPORT
Report of Independent Accountants
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
and the related consolidated statements of income, of
retained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Central Hudson
Gas & Electric Corporation and its subsidiaries at December
31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1989, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

Qnancial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the
opinion expressed above.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company adopted in 1987 Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 90, "Regulated
Enterprises - Accounting for Abandonments and
Disallowances of Plant Costs." The adoption of this
Statement resulted in the disallowed portion of the
Company's investment in Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile Point
Nuclear Station being recognized as a loss in the 1987
financial statements.

PRICE WATERHOUSE

New York, New York
January 26, 1990

Consolidated Statement of Retained Earnings
thousands of Dollars)
Year ended December 31,
1987

1989

Balance at be~ning of year
Net Income (Loss) (Note 2)

$ 24,730
39,117

63,847

$ 11,530 $ 164,733
43,804 (109,944)
54,789
55,334

Dividends declared:
On cumulative preferred stock.
On common stock
($ 1.76 per share 1989; $ 1.715 per share 1988;
$ 2.645 per share 1987).

Balance at end of year
* Pursuant to the ter ms of the

4.85%

5,698

5,753

5,593

25,825
31,523

24,851
30,604

37,666
43,259

$ 32,324*

$ 24,730

S 11,530

promissory notes, due 1995, $ 23,910 is available for payment of dividends on common stock.

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Thousands of Dollars)

Assets
1989

1988

UtilityPlant
Electric .............

S

Gas..

Common.
Nuclear Fuel..
Less:

Accumulated depreciation.
Nuclear fuel amortization

Construction work in progress..

Other Property and Investments.

983,479
88,501
55,196
19 231
1,146,407
317,356
8 240
820,811
26 994
847 805

$ 962,102
81,207
50,349
16 689
1,110,347
286,444
4 156
819,747
25 156
844 903

5 303

9 865

4,642
10,475
179
36,506
8,961
5,889

3,907
20,667
1,185
11,345
6,678
8,586

16,349
12,824
10 209
106 034

14,930
11,625
8 785
87 708

75,221
3,685
9,287
2,964
2,696
20 700
114 553

76,252
4,606
9,104
2,857
1,809
9 186
103 814

Current Assets
Cash..

Temporary cash investments.
Special deposits.
Accounts receivable from customers - net (Note 9) ..............
Accrued unbilled utility revenues (Notes 1 and 9)...........~....
Other receivables
Materials and supplies, at average cost:
Fuel.
Construction and operating .
'Prepaid taxes and other prepayments.

Deferred Charges
Deferred finance charges - Nine Mile 2 Project (Note 1) ............
Deferred Roseton litigation settlement (Note 1) ..........................
Unamortized debt expense
Deferred vacation (Note 10)
Deferred NMP-2 litigation costs..
Other

~1073 695

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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1

046 290

December 31, 1989 and 1988

Liabilities
1988

1989

Capitalization
Common Stock Equity
$ 73,707
220,355
32,324

Common stock (Note 6) .
Paid-in capital (Note 6)
Retained earnings
Capital stock expense

~567

Cumulative Preferred Stock (Note 6)
Without sinking fund.
With sinking fund.

Long-term Debt (Note 7) ..

240,034
50,067
24,730

S

~5562

320 709

309 269

61,030
20 000
81 030

61,030
20 000
81 030

447 440
849 179

448 605
838 904

1,559
25,617
4,830
7,927
3,157
3,416
7,886
5,554
5 424
65 370

1,473
23 727

63,114
1,468
12 889
77 471

66,565
1,783
7 896
76 244

81 675

69 364

Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt..
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes.
Accrued interest
Accrued vacation (Note 10) .
Customer deposits.
Dividends declared ..
Accrued Nine Mile 2 Project completion costs (Note 2) ...
Other

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred finance charges - Nine Mile 2 Project (Note

1) ............

Operating reserves.
Other

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note

4) ..............

3 722

7,812
3,050
3,497
7,849
4,622
6 026
61 778

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 10).....
1

073 695

1

046 290

The Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statement of Income
(Thousands of Dollars)
Year ended December 31,
1989

1988

1987

Operating Revenues
Electric
Gas..

Total - own territory.
Revenues from electric sales to other utilities.

$ 379,376
66 767
446,143
23 859
470 002

$ 366,052
59 136
425,188
13 197
438 385

S 357,726

130,078
15,757
39,275
77,994
23,939
35,344
51,240
10,253
9 575
393 455

114,020
12,099
31,981
74,143
23,813
31,938
47,953
(2,817)
24 660
357 790

104,041
30,031
27,131
62,713
20,632
28,163
44,379
13,032
18 444
348 566

76 547

80 595

80 511

463
3,646
(2,736)

403
5,747
(5,044)

3,371
3,330
(3,401)

54 126
411,852
17 225
429 077

Operating Expenses
Operation:
Fuel used in electric generation
Purchased electricity
Purchased natural gas.
Other expenses of operation..
Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization (Note 1)
Taxes, other than income tax.
Federal income tax (Note 4) ..
Deferred income tax (Note 4) .

.

Operating Income

Other Income and Deductions
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (Note

1) ......~......

Federal income tax (Note 4) ...
Deferred income tax (Note 4)
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90 (Note 2)
Disallowed plant costs ......................................................................
Related income tax.
Other - net.

Income before Interest Charges and Cumulative Effect of a
Change in Accounting Principle

(64,874)
12,955
3 419
4 792

2 739
3 845

46 421

81 339

84 440

34 090

30,055
10,187
1,350
(429)
1 059
42 222

29,001
8,888
2,296
(591)
1 042
40 636

33,313
7,318
2,477
(1,605)
1 056
42 559

39,117

43,804

(8,469)

2 198

Interest Charges
Interest on mortgage bonds.
Interest on other long-term debt
Other interest.
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (Note 1) ...
Amortization of premium and expense on debt ..

Income (loss) before Cumulative Effect of a Change in
Accounting Principle
Cumulative Effect on Prior Years of Adoption of SFAS 90
(Less applicable income tax of $ 45,431) (Note 2)

~101 475

Net Income (Loss).
39,117
Dividends on Preferred Stock.
5 698
Income (Loss) Available for Common Stock
~33 419
Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding (000's).........................
14 657
Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share - On Average Shares Outstanding:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of SFAS 90.............................
Earnings (loss) per share

'Ke Notes
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43,804
5 753

38 051
14 473

$ 2.28
2.28

to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.

(109,944)
5 593

@115 537)
14 230

$ 2.63
8.12

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Thousands of Dollars)

Year ended December 31,

,0

1988

1989

5

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income (Loss) .
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of SFAS 90.....
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90..
Depreciation and amortization.
Deferred income taxes, net
Allowance for funds used during construction.
NMP-2 deferred finance charges, net
Deferred storm costs.
Deferred Danskammer rehabilitation costs.
Deferred Sterling Project costs.
Deferred electric revenues.
Provisions for uncollectibles .
Other - net..
Changes in current assets gr. liabilities, net:
Receivable - NMP-2 Settlement.
Accrued NMP-2 Project completion costs.
Accounts receivable and unbilled utility revenues...........
Materials and supplies .
Special deposits.
Prepaid taxes and other prepayments.
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes and interest
Other current liabilities..

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to plant.
Allowance for funds used during construction..
Net cash expenditures..
Investment activity of subsidiaries ..
Plant retirements, costs of removal and other.
Net cash used in investing activities..
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of:
Long-term debt.
Common stock
Pollution'control debt:

$ 39,117

40,306
12,310
(892)
(2,420)

43,804

35,422
29,704
(994)
(500)
185
(55)

(551)
2,533
(41)

(1,659)
(234)
2,164

(201)
(27,280)
(2,618)
1,006
(1,424)
1,891
1,223

26,100
(5,510)
(7,351)
(4,192)
309
(1,095)
1,290
(7,810)

$ (109,944)

101,475
41,787
28,933
21,845
(4,976)
(933)
(3,728)
(10,114)
3,206
(2,236)
1,072
752

10,132
23,958
661
639
429
(4,797)
6,323
2 357

~174

~6600

62 785

102 978

106 841

(42,086)
892

(53,472)
994

(100,692)
4 976

(41,194)
(2,016)

(52,478)
(5,881)
4 083

(95,716)
203

43 579

54 276

98 664

499
3,961

5,850
3,955

6,394

~369

16,700
(16,700)
19,806

Issued.
Deposited with Trustee.

Withdrawn from Trustee
Short-term debt, net
Cash provided by external sources..
Retirement and redemption of long-term debt
Dividends paid on preferred and common stock.
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities.

S

1987

~4000
4,460
(1,636)

~31~487)

25,611
(21,620)
~30 325

~3151

43,600
(43,600)
58,088
4 000
68,482
(35,075)
~47 481

28 663

26 334

14 074

(9,457)

22,368

(5,897)

2 206
3 24 574

8 103
2 206

S 39,099
S 42,263
interest paid..
7,000
10,158
Federal income taxes paid.
The Notes to Consolidated Financia 1 Statements are an integral part hereof.

S 41,722

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year.
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

24 574
8 15 117

10,007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General: The Company is subject to regulation by the
Public Service Commission of the State of New York (PSC)
and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) with
respect to its rates for service and the maintenance of its
accounting records. The Company's accounting policies
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applied to regulated public utilities, and are in accordance
with the accounting requirements and rate-making practices
of the regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.
In December 1988, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 95, "Statement of
Cash Flows." The 1987 Statement of Changes in Financial
Position has been restated to reflect the effect of the adoption
of this accounting pronouncement. For purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows, the Company considers short-term
investments with a maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 94,
"Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subsidiaries" (SFAS
94), in December 1988, the Company used the equity method
of accounting for its investment in its subsidiaries.
The Company's subsidiaries are wholly owned landholding,
gas exploration, cogeneration and energy management
companies. The assets, liabilities and results of operations of
these subsidiaries are not significant in relation to the
Company. Accordingly, 1987 financial statements have not
been restated to reflect the adoption of SFAS 94.
Furthermore, due to immateriality, the net income of the
Company's subsidiaries is reflected in the Statement of
Income as other nonoperating income - net. Allintercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

UtilityPlant: The costs of additions to utilityplant and
replacements of retirement units of property are capitalized at
original cost. The costs of Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile Point
Nuclear Station (NMP-2) are capitalized at original cost, less
the amount of the disallowed investment (See Note 2). Costs
include labor, materials and supplies, indirect charges for
such items as transportation, certain taxes, pension and other
employee benefits, and an allowance for the cost of funds
used during construction. Replacement of minor items of
property is included in maintenance expenses.
The original cost of property, together with removal cost,
less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation at such
time as the property is retired and removed from service.
The Company has a 9% or 97.2 mw. interest in the 1,080
mw. NMP-2 Plant and a 35% or 420 mw. interest in the 1,200
mw. Roseton Steam Electric Generating Plant (Roseton
Plant). See Note 10 for further discussion.
The Company's share of the investment in NMP-2 and the
Roseton Plant, as included in its Balance Sheet at December
31, 1989 and 1988, was:
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1989

1988

|Thousands of Dollars)

NMP-2
Plant in service
Construction work in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Roseton Plant
Plant in service

Construction work in progress
Accumulated depreciation

$ 303,429

$ 301,101

3,110
(13,046)

2,771
(5,571)

$ 117,574
178
(54,132)

$ 117,336
128
(50,431)

AHowance for Funds used During Construction: The
Company includes in plant costs an allowance for funds used
during construction (AFDC) approximately equivalent to the
cost of funds used to finance construction expenditures. The
concurrent credit for the amount so capitalized is reported in
the Statement of Income as follows: the portion applicable to
borrowed funds is reported as a reduction of interest charges
while the portion applicable to other funds (the equity
component) is reported as other income. AFDC is a noncash
source of income.
During the construction of NMP-2, the PSC authorized the
inclusion in rate base of increasing amounts of the Company's
investment in NMP-2. The Company did not accrue AFDC on
any of the NMP-2 construction work in progress (CWIP)
which was included in rate base and for which a cash return
was being allowed; however, the PSC ordered, effective
January 1, 1983, that amounts be accumulated in deferred
debit and credit accounts equal to the amount of AFDC which
was not being accrued on the CWIP included in rate base
(Mirror CWIP). The balance in the deferred credit account is
available to reduce future revenue requirements over a period
substantially shorter than the life of NMP-2, while the balance
in the deferred debit account is being recovered through
amortization over the life of that Plant. The net effect of this
procedure is that at the end of the amortization period for the
deferred credit, the accounting and rate-making treatment
willbe the same as ifNMP-2 CWIP had not been included in
rate base during the construction period.

Depreciation and Amortization: For financial statement
purposes, the Company's depreciation provisions are computed
on the straight-line method using rates based on studies of the
estimated useful lives and estimated net salvage of properties.
The provision for depreciation of transportation equipment is
charged indirectly to various asset and expense accounts.
For federal income tax purposes, the Company uses an
accelerated method of depreciation and generally uses the
shortest life permitted for each class of assets.
The amortization and recovery of the Company's investment in the cancelled Sterling Nuclear Plant Project and
related cancellation charges was completed in July 1988, and
is reported on the Statement of Income as "Depreciation and

Amortization."

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel: The cost of NMP-2
nuclear fuel assemblies and components is amortized to >
operating expenses based on the quantity of heat produced

for the generation of electric energy. Niagara Mohawk, on
behalf of the NMP-2 cotenants, has entered into an agreement
with the U.S. Department of Energy for the ultimate disposal
and storage of spent nuclear fuel. The cotenants are assessed
a fee for such disposal based upon the kilowatt-hours actually
generated by NMP-2. These costs are charged to operating
expense and recovered from customers through base rates or
through the electric fuel cost adjustment clause described
below. The Company cannot now determine whether such
arrangements with the U.S. Department of Energy will
ultimately provide for the satisfactory permanent disposal of
such waste products.

Rates and Revenues: Electric and gas retail rates
applicable to intrastate service (other than contractually
established rates for service to municipalities and
governmental bodies) are regulated by the PSC. Transmission
rates and rates for electricity sold for resale in interstate
commerce are regulated by the FERC.
Revenues are recognized on the basis of cycle billings
rendered monthly or bimonthly. Estimated revenues are
accrued for those customers billed bimonthly whose meters
are not read in the current month.
The Company's tarifffor retail electric service includes a
fuel cost adjustment clause pursuant to which electric rates
are adjusted to reflect changes in the average cost of fuels
used for electric generation and in certain purchased power
costs from the average of such costs included in base rates.
The Company's tarifffor gas service contains a comparable
clause to adjust gas rates for changes in the price of purchased
natural gas and in certain costs of manufactured gas.

Deferred Electric Fuel Costs: The provisions of the
electric fuel cost adjustment clause are such that changes in
fuel costs incurred in the current month are not billed or
credited to customers until subsequent months. Therefore, in
order to match costs and revenues, the Company defers that
portion of such costs incurred in the current month which will
result in a cost adjustment in subsequent months.
Pursuant to a 1985 Order of the PSC, the Company's electric
fuel cost adjustment clause provides for a partial sharing of
variations in fuel costs from the levels of fuel costs projected in
rate proceedings. The Company bears 20% of the first $ 10
million of variation and 10% of the second $ 10 million of
variation. The partial sharing applies to variations in actual fuel
costs either above or below the projected levels; accordingly,
the Company's maximum annual exposure, or benefit, is $ 3
million, before taxes.
As a result of the adoption of the partial sharing electric fuel
adjustment clause, the PSC adopted a symmetrical sharing
arrangement for net revenues from sales to other utilities.
Shor tfalls below the imputed amount, as well as amounts
above the imputed amount, willbe shared 80% by the
customers and 20% by the Company.
Deferred Gas Costs: In accordance with requirements of
the PSC applicable to all New York State regulated gas
utilities, the Company defers each month any difference
between the amount of gas costs incurred which is
recoverable through the gas fuel cost adjustment clause
(GAC) and GAC revenues. The net deferral remaining at

August 31 of each year is amortized over a subsequent twelvemonth period for both billing and accounting purposes.

Deferred Electric Revenues: On occasion, revenues which
are billed over a twelve-month rate year are designed to cover
speciTic expenses which are projected to be incurred during
the latter part of the rate year. Although there willbe a
matching of revenues and costs in the rate year there can be a
mismatching of revenues and costs within calendar years. If
the amount of the projected mismatch is material, the
Company may petition the PSC to defer any revenues collected
prior to the time the associated expenses are incurred and to
restore such deferred revenues at the time the expenses are
incurred. Such deferred accounting provides a better matching
of revenues and costs during calendar years.
Roseton Plant Litigation Settlement: During 1983, the
Company and the other two coowners of the Roseton Plant
reached a settlement to recover damages for alleged
negligence in the design and construction of the Roseton Plant
by certain contractors which resulted in a boiler implosion.
The $ 3.7 million amount recorded at December 31, 1989 in
deferred charges represents the Company's 35% interest in the
remaining balance of the $ 26.3 million settlement to be
received over a ten-year period that commenced in 1984.

NOTE 2 - NINE MILE 2 PIANT
General: NMP-2 is located in Oswego County, New York,
and is operated by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation
(Niagara Mohawk). NMP-2 is owned as tenants in common by
the Company (9% interest), Niagara Mohawk (41% interest),
New York State Electric 5 Gas Corporation (18% interest),
Long Island Lighting Company (18% interest) and Rochester
Gas and Electric Corporation (14% interest). The output of
NMP-2 is shared in the same proportions as the
ownership interests. The operating expenses of
NMP-2 are also allocated to the cotenants in the same
proportions as their respective ownership interests. The
Company includes these expenses as other expenses of
operation in the Statement of Income.
On August 22, 1989, the NMP-2 cotenants entered into a new
18-month Interim Operating Agreement which provides the
cotenants'espective

nonoperating cotenants greater management oversight concerning that Plant Such Agreement is subject to PSC approval. All
the cotenants have also agreed to conduct a study on the
possible formation of a separate company to operate the Plant. In
addition, the Management Analytical Technical Services
Company has been engaged as of August 1, 1989 as the management on-site representative for the nonoperating cotenants.

Write-offof Disallowed Investment: In September 1986,
the PSC approved a settlement (Settlement) of a proceeding to
investigate the prudence of expenditures on the construction
of NMP-2. The Settlement, among other things, limits the
expenditures on NMP-2 which the cotenants can recover
through rates to $ 4.16 billion. The Company's earnings have
been significantly reduced as a result of the cost disallowance
under the Settlement because, for rate-making purposes, the
Company is not allowed to earn a return on the after tax
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amount of such disallowed investment and, therefore, derives
no revenues from this disallowed investment.
In December 1986, the FASH issued SFAS No. 90,
"Regulated Enterprises - Accounting for Abandonments and
Disallowances of Plant Costs, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 71" (SFAS 90). Among other things, the
provisions of SFAS 90 require that when it becomes probable
that part of the cost of a generating plant will be disallowed for
rate-making purposes and a reasonable estimate of the
disallowance can be made, the estimated amount of the
probable disallowance shall be deducted from the reported
cost of the plant and recognized as a loss for financial
reporting purposes. Also, SFAS 90 allows the capitalization of
AFDC, a noncash item, only ifit is probable that such AFDC
will be included as an allowable cost for rate-making purposes.
In December 1987, the Company adopted SFAS 90 and
recognized the NMP-2 disallowance for financial reporting
purposes. Accordingly, the effect of the NMP-2 disallowance
was recorded in the Company's financial statements for 1987.
The amount of the aftertax writ+offin 1987 was $ 169.3 million
($ 11.90 per share), which amount was based on an estimate of
the Company's share of the disallowance. Any variance between
the final amount of the disallowance and the amount recorded
in 1987 willbe recorded in subsequentyears.'11ie writeoff
resulted in a signi6cant loss for calendar year 1987 and reduced
the book value per share of the Company's common stock f'rom
$ 32.14 to $ 20.35, a reduction of 36.7%. In addition, the writ~ff
reduced the amount of accumulated retied earnings from
$ 180.8 million to $ 11.5 million and the common equity
component of the Company's capital structure from 46.4% to
35.4% as of December 31, 1987. Reference is made to the FiveYear Summary of Consolidated Operations for the pro forma
effect of the retroactive application of SFAS 90.
, For purposes of determining the amount of the NMP-2
disallowance written off against income in 1987 pursuant to
SFAS 90, the Company assumed a commercial operation date
for NMP-2 of April 30, 1988. Based on such assumed
commercial operation date, the total cost of the Company's
interest in NMP-2 was estimated to be $ 537.9 million ($ 390.1
million of cash expenditures and $ 147.8 million for AFDC).
Based on that estimated total cost and the accounting and ratemaking treatment ordered by the PSC in 1987 for
implementation of the Settlement, the Company's disallowance
under the Settlement, after reflecting the applicable federal
income tax benefits and a $ 26.1 million payment received from
Niagara Mohawk, related to the Settlement, is estimated to be
$ 180.4 million for rate-making purposes, and $ 169.3 million for
financial reporting purposes. As stated above, the latter
amount was written off to income in 1987 pursuant to SFAS 90.
On August 20, 1988, the PSC determined in a Niagara
Mohawk rate proceeding that for purposes of rate-making,
NMP-2 commenced commercial operation on April 5, 1988.
'Ke attainment of a commercial operation date prior to the
April30, 1988 date assumed in calculating the disallowance
written off in 1987 should reduce the final amount of the
disallowance; however, the Company's disallowance under the
Settlement would be increased by any future costs the PSC
might allocate to the disallowance. Given the inability to predict
what actions the PSC might take with respect to allocating
additional costs to the disallowance, no assurances can be
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provided that increases in the disallowance willnot occur.

Dividends: On December 18, 1987, the Company declared
a quarterly dividend on its common stock of $ .425'per share
payable on February 1, 1988. This dividend represented a',
decrease of 9.315, or 43%, from the previous quarterly
dividend rate of $ .74 per share. The dividend reduction was
made necessary principally by the reduced earnings resulting
from the recognition for rate-making purposes of the
disallowance under the Settlement. The rate-making treatment
for the NMP-2 disallowance was implemented by the PSC in
the Company's July 1987 electric rate order. This, coupled with
the adoption of SFAS 90 in 1987, which precluded the
inclusion in income of any AFDC on the disallowed
investment, lowered earnings per share for 1987, before the
effect of the writ~ff,to $ 2.66 as compared to $4.49 in 1986, a
reduction of 41%. As a result of the lower earnings, it was not
possible to continue dividend payments at the prior level.
On December 16, 1988, the Company increased the
quarterly dividend rate to $ .44 per share from $ .425 per share,
an increase of 3.5%. The Company believes the present
quarterly dividend rate of 8.44 per share is sustainable,
barring unforeseen circumstances.

Court Challenges: The Settlement has been challenged by
the State Consumer Protection Board, the Attorney General
and an Assemblyman from a district served by the Company
in a proceeding commenced by them in April 1987 in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, Albany County,
under Article 78 of the New York Civil Practice Law and Rules
(CPLR). These parties allege that the expenditures in NMP-2
of $ 4.16 billion which the Settlement allows to be recovered
through rates greatly exceed the prudently incurred costs
which should be accorded rate recovery and that the PSC's
approval of the Settlement is affected by an error of law, is
arbitrary and capricious, is an abuse of discretion, and is not
based on substantial evidence. Such parties request the court
to direct the PSC to conduct full evidentiary hearings into the
amount of costs in NMP-2 which were prudently incurred.
Such proceeding has been transferred for decision to the
Appellate Division, Third Department. The Company
considers these parties'osition to be without merit and will
oppose the relief sought by such parties. However, should the
relief sought be granted, the Company can make no prediction
as to whether the PSC, as a result of such remanded
proceeding, might find that the prudently incurred costs of
NMP-2 should be less than $ 4.16 billion.
On July 10, 1987, the Company, together with the other
NMP-2 cotenants, commenced a judicial proceeding in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, Albany County,
pursuant to Article 78 of the CPLR challenging the PSC's
accounting and rate-making implementation of the Settlement,
which had been ordered by the PSC in March 1987, and
seeking an order of the court directing the PSC: (i) to allow
the cotenants to recover through rates certain costs
improperly included by the PSC in the amounts not
recoverable under the Settlement, (ii) to deduct the costdisallowance under the Settlement ratably against capitalization for rate-making purposes and not exclusively against„
common equity, (iii) to calculate the aftertax disallowance at a
46% tax rate, (iv) to value nominally the tax benefits reserved

for the cotenants'hareholders, and (v) to include such tax
benefits in rate base. The Company is unable to predict the
results of such action.
Contractor Zitigationi The NMP-2 cotenants entered into
an agreement, dated January 26, 1989, with the General
Electric Company (GE) relating to certain disputes. Said
agreement provides that GE willsupply certain goods and
services to the cotenants over a period of years without cost or
at a reduced cost. The Company regards the agreement with
GE as a favorable settlement.
Said agreement provides for certain indemnification,
including a limited reimbursement for legal expense, of GE by
the cotenants with respect to any future judgments or
settlements against GE attained by other NMP-2 contractors
in lawsuits related to the Nuclear Steam Supply System
portion of the construction of NMP-2, limited, however, to the
extent such judgments or settlements result from successful
NMP-2 cotenant claims against such contractors.
No part of this agreement has been included in income
pending determination by the PSC of the allocation of the
benefits of the settlement between the Company's
shareholders and its customers. The Company has recorded
on the Balance Sheet a deferred debit and deferred credit
representing the present value of its interest in the goods and
services receivable under such settlement. The amount
related to such receivable has been included in the line item
entitled "Other" in the Deferred Charge and Deferred Credit
categories of the Balance Sheet.
On August 1, 1988, the Company and the other NMP-2
cotenants filed a complaint commencing an action in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of New
York against the following three corporations involved in the
construction of NMP-2: Stone &Webster Engineering
Corporation, the architectwngineer and construction manager
for NMP-2, ITI'Fluid Products Corp. and ITI'Fluid
Technology Corp., successor companies to ITI'Grinnel, which
fabricated and erected piping for NMP-2. The complaint seeks
damages for, among other things, breach of contractual and
professional obligations in the performance by said defendants
under their contracts which resulted in delays, redesign,
reconstruction and higher costs for the completed work. The
Company cannot predict whether the action willbe successful
or the amount of damages, ifany, which may be recovered.
On April 17, 1987, the Company and the other cotenants
filed a complaint commencing an action in the Supreme Court
of the State of New York, Onondaga County, against Gulf+
Western, Inc., Crosby Valve & Gage Company and Wickes
Manufacturing Company with respect: to problems
encountered with NMP-2's original main steam isolation
valves (MSIVs) which had been designed and fabricated by
them. Such problems caused a delay of seven months in the
completion of NMP-2. In their complaint, the cotenants allege,
among other things, that the MSIVs failed to perform in
accordance with the terms of the contract entered into for
their design, fabrication and delivery and seek damages of
approximately $ 500 million from the defendants. The
Company cannot predict whether the action willbe successful
or the amount of damages, ifany, which may be recovered.

Settlement Discussions: The cotenants of NMP-2, the
Staff of the Department of Public Service, the State Consumer
Protection Board, the Attorney General and other interested
parties have been negotiating a settlement to resolve open
and current NMP-2 issues. Among the issues being discussed
are (i) the allocation of additional construction costs to the
disallowance, (ii) the resolution of the two court challenges
referred to above, (iii) the allocation of net proceeds from
contractor litigations, discussed above, between shareholders and ratepayers, (iv) the petition by the Attorney
General to investigate the prudence of the extended
middle outage discussed below and (v) future operation
and maintenance expenses.
On January 24, 1990, the parties reached an oral agreement
in principle on all outstanding issues. The parties are
proceeding to prepare a written settlement agreement for
submission to the PSC. Among other things, final approval of
such an agreement would bring to a close all outstanding
issues related to the cost of construction of NMP-2 and the
1986 Settlement Agreement. The Company, however, cannot
give any assurance that the PSC willapprove such a
settlement agreement.
Approval of the settlement would not result in a material
adjustment to the amount written off in 1987. As stated above,
the 1987 writmffwas based on estimated costs to complete
NMP-2 and an assumed commercial operation date of April 30,
1988. Because NMP-2 was placed in service on April 5, 1988
and the final cost of the project was less than assumed for
purposes of the 1987 writmff,the Company has a reserve
balance at December 31, 1989 of $ 5.6 million which should be
sufficient to offset most, ifnot all, of the additional
disallowance resulting from the settlement.

Nuclear Regulatory Commission: In December 1988, the
Company was advised by Niagara Mohawk that senior
managers of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) had
recently conducted their biannual review of the performance
of nuclear power plants licensed by the NRC. As a result of
this review, Niagara Mohawk was advised on December 20,
1988 by the NRC that the Nine Mile Point Station (Units 1 and
2) was being categorized as requiring close monitoring by the
NRC. The conclusion was based on a current NRC assessment
of NMP-2's performance in certain areas during the first year
of its operation and a June 1988 assessment of the overall
performance of said Unit 1. Further, the NRC Staff observed
that increased licensee and NRC management attention is
needed to ensure that performance improvement at the Nine
Mile Point Station is achieved. The Company has no
ownership interest in Unit No. 1 of the Nine Mile Point Station.
A public meeting of the NRC was held on December 21, 1988,
wherein the need for increased licensee and NRC management attention was confirmed.
On October 1, 1988, NMP-2 began a scheduled maintenance
and inspection middle outage which was expected to be
completed by the end of December 1988. The Plant, however,
did not return to service until April 5, 1989. Niagara Mohawk
advised the Company that the outage was extended to effect
repair and retest of a main steam isolation valve, repair of
generator retaining rings, replacement of a generator

coupling and repair and retest of six valves in the residual
heat removal system.
By petition, dated March 22, 1989, the Attorney General of
the State of New York petitioned the PSC to expand the scope
of the PSC's ongoing proceeding, to investigate the prudence
of the prolonged outage of Unit No. 1 of the Nine Mile Point
Nuclear Station (located adjacent to NMP-2 and owned and
operated solely by Niagara Mohawk), to include an
investigation of management prudence in connection with the
outage at NMP-2, which commenced October 1, 1988, and to
grant interim relief to ratepayers. By letter of April 10, 1989,
the Staff of the PSC concluded that the Attorney General'
petition should be granted to form a combined prudence
proceeding, but that any interim rate relief should be denied
"at this time." The Company and the other NMP-2 cotenants
filed their opposition to the Attorney General's petition.
On August 11, 1989, Niagara Mohawk informed the
Company that in July, 14 of 48 licensed operators for NMP-2
failed to pass required annual license requalification testing.
Niagara Mohawk then implemented an action plan to correct
deficiencies in the NMP-2 requalification training program that
resulted in the unacceptably high examination failure rates.
On November 8, 1989, the Company was informed by Niagara
Mohawk that it had successfully retested, with NRC
participation, all but one of the failed operators.

.

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs: In July 1988,
the NRC adopted revised regulations governing the
requirements for the provision by nuclear facility licensees of
the costs of the eventual decommissioning of nuclear facilities.
These regulations require the direct funding of such
decommissioning costs at a substantially accelerated rate from
what has heretofore been required and could cause the
Company to increase its capital requirements and related
expense levels by amounts which cannot be currently
determined. The owners of NMP-2 have until July 1990 to file
with the NRC a decommissioning plan which complies with
the new regulations.
Estimated decommissioning costs for NMP-2 are currently
being recovered in rates through an annual aHowance and
charged to operations through depreciation charges. The
Company's 9% share of costs to decommission NMP-2, which
is expected to begin in the year 2027, is estimated to be
approximately $ 118 million ($ 27.2 million in 1989 dollars). The
current annual allowance for recovery of $ 324,000 is based on
the PSC's estimated decommissioning costs. This amount is
increased each year to reflect inflation and is subject to
periodic review by the PSC.
In a related matter, the PSC has commenced a proceeding
to examine the funding and taxation aspects of accumulating
nuclear decommissioning funds applicable to all New York
utilities with nuclear plant ownership. Pursuant to a PSC order
dated March 1, 1989, the Company filed on June 29, 1989 a
report responding to questions raised in such Order. The PSC
has not yet addressed the Company's filing.The Company
cannot now determine whether the NMP-2 decommissioning
costs presently allowed in rates by the PSC, or the estimated
costs to be contained in the decommissioning plan to be filed
with the NRC referred to above or the estimated costs
identified in the Company's June 29, 1989 filingwith the PSC,

will ultimately be adequate to decommission NMP-2 in
accordance with then existing law, regulation, technology and
actual cost.

NOTE 3 - ELECTRIC RATE FILING
Concluded: The Company, on April 15, 1988, filed a
proposal with the PSC to stabilize base electric rates through
July 31, 1989, and possibly longer. In conjunction therewith,
the Company proposed to reduce base electric rates by about
$ 3 million during the twelve-month period August 1, 1988
through July 31, 1989. The PSC established a proceeding to
consider the Company's rate stabilization proposal. Following
review of the Company's proposal, Staff of the Department of
Public Service and the Company entered into a Stipulation and
Agreement (Stipulation) which resolved all issues, other than
return on common equity, which the parties agreed to litigate,
and which Stipulation provided for a $ 2,689,000 reduction in
base electric rates for the period August 1, 1988 through July
31, 1989 (Rate Year).
On May 22, 1989, the PSC issued its Opinion and Order
(Order) approving the Stipulation, which provides for a
$ 2,689,000 reduction in base electric rates, effective August 1,
1988. The Order authorized a 13.0% return on common equity,
representing an increase from the 12.7% return on common
equity contained in the Stipulation and recommended
previously by the Administrative Law Judge. Because the
Company's financial results subsequent to August 1, 1988
were based on the 12.7% return contained in the Stipulation,
the retroactive effect of the higher return on common equity
was recorded in the second quarter of 1989. This retroactive
adjustment was accomplished by increasing the amount of
Mirror CWIP that was amortized to income.
Pending: The Company, on May 26, 1989, filed a request
with the PSC to increase its rates for electric service to produce
additional annual revenue of $ 21.6 million, or 5.7%. The higher
rates have been requested to cover increases in capital and
operating costs, projected for the rate year in this proceeding,
which is the twelve-month period May 1, 1990 through April 30,
1991, that are not adequately provided for in present rates and
willnot be offset by increased revenues from sales.
On October 6, 1989, the Staff of the PSC submitted testimony
in this rate proceeding countering the Company's proposal to
increase base electric rates by $ 21.6 million effective in May
1990. The Staff has proposed that no increase be granted based
primarily on Staffs assumption that sales willexceed those
forecasted by the Company and a recommended 11.5% return
on common equity as compared to the 13.85% return requested
by the Company. The Company has excepted to Staffs position
and on October 20 and 25, 1989 filed rebuttal testimony in
support of its need for additional revenues, a reasonable return
on common equity, and the need to maintain the financial
integrity of the Company. No prediction can be made as to
whether or not the position of the Staff willchange or whether
such position willbe adopted by the Administrative Law Judge
hearing the proceeding or, ultimately, by the PSC in its Order in
the proceeding. Ifthe position of the Staff ultimately prevails, it
would have a material adverse effect on the Company's future
earnings and financial condition.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL INCOME TAX
General: The Company's general policy with respect to
accounting for the federal income tax is to reflect in income
the estimated amount of income tax currently payable and
to provide for deferred taxes on timing differences between
book and taxable income to the extent permitted for ratemaking purposes.

Depreciation: In computing depreciation for federal
income tax purposes for years subsequent to 1980, the
Company used the Accelerated Cost Recovery System (ACRS)
as prescribed in the Economic Recovery Tax Act of 1981
(ERTA); however, commencing in 1987 the Company has
complied with the changes to ACRS required by the Tax
Reform Act of 1986 tTRA46).

Investment Tax Credit: TRA-86 repealed the investment
tax credit for property additions placed in service after
December 31, 1985, except for property additions covered by
the related transitional rules. The Company's investment in the

Danskammer Generating Plant and NMP-2, as well as certain
other property additions, meets these transitional rules and,
therefore, the related investment tax credit for these projects
continued to reduce federal income taxes in 1988 and 1987.
With respect to periods preceding TRA46, the additional
investment tax credit which resulted from increasing the rate
of such creditfrom 4% to 10%, as provided by the Tax
Reduction Act of 1976, was deferred and is being amortized
over the life of the related property in accordance with a
Statement of Policy of the PSC. Effective July 18, 1981, the
Company was authorized by the PSC to defer the full 10%
investment tax credit associated with the Company's
participation in NMP-2 to be amortized over the life of that
Plant. The Company commenced full deferral of its investment
tax credit on October 22, 1982, pursuant to PSC authorization
and in accordance with ERTA.

Deferred Income Tax: A summary of the amounts
charged or credited to income is as follows:

1989

195Z

1955

thousands of Dollars)

Operating Income:
Tax effect of Danskammer coal reconversion.....
NMP-2 tax depreciation.
Accelerated cost recovery system ........................
Redemption of mortgage bonds............................
NMP-2 proper ty tax.
Class life depreciation
Deferred electric construction overheads...........
Investment tax credit.
Mass transit surcharge
Cost of removal.
Sterling Project cancellation charges ..................
Deferred fuel and gas costs..
Deferred revenues- Danskammer coal
reconversion
Deferred revenues - NMP-2
Repair allowance
Danskammer tax depreciation.
Capitalized interest
Contributions in aid of construction .....................
Unbilled revenue
Alternative minimum tax
Other.

8

8

8,381
2,667

12,380
2,920

636
468

284
966
176
7,950
609
994

1,155

468

1,057
173

8 7,619
5,807
2,463
79
1,294
1,176

8

8

8

793
438
173
84
121
109

337
210

448
2,694
3
60

235
234

172

945
120

49
150

5,418

.723
480

650
551

42
(2,788)

374

673
408
348
396

1,869

2,056
3,809
3,466
1,776

151
64

1,162

953
450
1,701
(1,749)

497
2,296

136

1,876

(241)
418
1,637
2,650

447
791
2,167
3,241

731
1,202
1,614

Other Income:
NMP-2 preoperational expenses .............................
Current year tax depreciation benefit- NMP-2 ....
Adjustment of NMP-2 future tax benefits ..............
Investment tax credit.

1,524

4,268

4,906

444

3,298
232
1,373

106

1,171

424

Other.
NMP-2 Disallowance:
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90 ....
Cumulative effect on prior years of
adoption of SFAS 90 ..

11,873

12,955

Total
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Reconciliation: The following is a reconciliation of
the difference between the amount of federal income
tax as reported in the Statement of Income and the

amount computed by multiplying the income before tax by
the statutory tax rate:

1989

1988

%of
Amount

~000
Net income (loss)

.

Federal income tax.
Deferred income tax - net.
Income (loss) before tax.

Computed tax expense
Increases (reductions) in computed
taxes resulting from:
NMP-2 disallowance
Excess tax depreciation
Investment tax credit.
Tax rate change/excess deferred tax ...

AFDC.
Sterling cancellation charges .................
Deferred fuel and gas costs - net ...........
Cost of removal
Other deferred costs.
Repair allowance
Roseton Litigation Settlement ................
Deferred NMP-2 revenue.
Deferred NMP-2 expenses.
Unbilled revenue
Capitalized interest.
Contributions in aid of

construction.
Alternative minimum tax
Miscellaneous items - net
Federal income tax.

Deferred income tax- net.
Total

S 39,117

12 311

34.N0

(23.0)
(0.3)
(2.0)
(0.5)
(1.3)
(1.0)
(0 1)
(0.7)
0.2

(265)
1,458
(301)

(0.5)
2.5
(0.5)

418
2,650

0.7
4.6

$ 22,081

(18,136)
(7,950)
(398)
(337)
250
(63)
(1,243)
(511)
(3,481)
838
(1,074)
(3,102)
2,258
(2,082)

6,607

11.4

791
3,241
354
(8,564)

12 311

21.2

29 704

~439

8 18 918

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 96: In December 1987, the FASB issued SFAS No. 96,
"Accounting for Income Taxes" (SFAS 96). This Statement
requires a company to adjust its deferred tax balances,
adhering to enacted tax laws, to reflect an estimate of its future
tax liabilitybased on temporary differences between book and
tax bases.
Based on the studies it has performed to date, the Company
estimates that the cumulative net amount of income tax timing
differences for which deferred income taxes have not been
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43,804
(8,564)
29 704

~0.

32.6%

~21 140

Amount

~000

%of
Pretax
Income

$ (109,944)
9,702
~24 668
124 910

564944

58 035

(13,337)
(173)
(1,136)
(303)
(3)
(734)
(586)
(63)
(429)
118

~000
S

6,607

$ 19,732

Amount

Pretax
Income

1987

%of
Pretax
Income

34.0%

(27.9)
(12.2)
(0.6)
(0.5)
0.4
(0.1)
(1.9)
(0.8)
(5.4)

8 (49,964)

(40.0)%

79,963
(11,963)
(3,692)

64.0
(9.6)
(3.0)

(1,998)
',250

(1.6)
1.8
(0.6)
(0.5)
(5.1)

(838)
(599)
(6,311)

207
22
65
1,614
1,311

0.2

(1.6)
(4 8)
3.5
(3.2)
1.2

1,202

1.0

1.3

0.1
1.3
1.0

5.0
0.5
(13.1)
45.7

~24

668

~19.8

32.6%

~14

966

~12.0

~156
9,702

~1.2
7.8

5

provided was approximately $ 120 million at December 31, 1989.
Based upon the Company's present understanding of SFAS 96,
such differences would have no immediate effect on its results
of operation, but would result in recognition on the balance
sheet of additional amounts of income taxes to be paid in the
future and to be recovered Rom customers as a cost of service
through the regulatory process. SFAS 96 must be adopted not
later than the first quarter of 1992. The Company has not made
a final determination as to when it willadopt SFAS 96 and the
method of adoption.

NOTE 5 - SHORT-TERM BORROWING
ARRANGEMENTS AND COMPENSATING BALANCES
Effective December 14, 1983, the Company entered into a
revolving credit/term loan facility with five commercial
banks. The revolving credit agreement (Agreement) is for a
period of seven years, at the end of which the Company has
the option to convert the Agreement to a three-year term
loan. The Agreement which provided for borrowing up to
$ 70 million was reduced to $ 50 million effective November 1,

1989. Said Agreement gives the Company the option of
borrowing at either the prime rate or two other money
market rates ifsuch rates are lower. Such Agreement also
provides for the payment of annual commitment fees on the
unborrowed amount. Compensating balances are not
required under the Agreement. In addition, the Company
continues to maintain confirmed lines of credit totaling $ 2
million with three regional banks.
There was no short-term debt outstanding at December

31, 1988 and 1989.

NOTE 6 - CAPITALIZATION- CAPITALSIOCK
Common stock $ 5 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized:

December 31, 1986....
Issued under dividend reinvestment plan.
Issued under PAYSOP
Transferred to paid-in capital
December 31, 1987.
Issued under dividend reinvestment plan ...
December 31, 1988.
Issued under dividend reinvestment plan......
Issued under customer stock purchase plan.
Transferred to paid-in capital
December 31, 1989....

Shares
Outstanding

Amount

14,105,850
243,375
10,330

$ 279,685
6,149
245
(50,000)

14,359,555
203,826
14,563,381
170,078
7,889

~236,079

14,741,348

s

($ 000)

3,955
240,034
5
1,607
39
(167,973)

Cumulative Preferred Stock, $ 100 par value; 1,200,000 shares authorized:

Redem tion Price

Eventual
Series

Current

4 '/2%
4.75%
4.35%
4.96%
7.72%
7.44%

Shares Outstandin
December 31,
1989 and 1988

~1hrou h

Minimum

$ 107.00
106.75
102.00
101.00
101.00
103.08
102.80

1/31/93
5/31/92

$ 107.00
106.75
102.00
101.00
101.00
101.22
101.00

70,300
20,000
60,000
60,000
130,000
120,000
160 000
610 300

103.00

3/31/93

100.00

200 000
810 300

Without
Sinking Fund:

8.4($

With
Sinking Fund:

Total.

The cumulative preferred stock, without sinking fund, is
redeemable only at the option of the Company and the sum
payable per share is the then current redemption price plus
accrued dividends thereon. In the event of involuntary
liquidation, the redemption price is $ 100 per share plus
accrued dividends.
The cumulative preferred stock, with sinking fund,
provides for the annual retirement of 8,000 shares, at $ 100
per share, plus accrued dividends, on each March 30,
commencing March 30, 1993. The dividend to be paid will
be adjusted each quarter and will be declared at a rate which
is 1% per annum below the highest of three specific U.S.
Treasury rates. The rate will never be less than 6% or greater
than 12.5% per annum. The adjusted rates applied for each
quarter of 1989 ranged between 7.36% and 8.36%, compared
with the range of 7.72% and 8.40% experienced during 1988
and 6.28% to 8.72% experienced during 1987.
Expenses incurred on issuance of capital stock are
accumulated and reported as a reduction in total capital
stock and are not being amortized.

Par Value Stock: The shareholders, at the annual meeting
of shareholders held April 5, 1988, adopted a proposal to
amend the Certificate of Incorporation of the Company to
change the 30 million authorized shares of common stock
without par value to par value of $ 5 per share. The Company,
on April 19, 1988, petitioned the PSC for authorization to
change the par value of its common stock to $ 5 per share.

By order issued and effective February 9, 1989, the PSC
granted such approval and consent. A Certificate of
Amendment of the Company's Certificate of Incorporation was
filed in the Office of the Department of State of the Stale of
New York on March 2, 1989 to effect such change in
designation.

Paid-In Capital: On September 25, 1987, the Board of
Directors of the Company approved, pursuant to Section 516 of
the New York Business Corporation Law, the transfer of $ 50
million 6'om stated capital to capital surplus (paid-in capital) as
of September 30, 1987. The amount so transferred from stated
capital to capital surplus willbe subsequently available for the
payment of dividends on common and preferred stock, subject
to compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. It is not
the present intention of the Company to use such capital
surplus for the payment of dividends; however, the transfer so
approved by the Board of Directors willprovide the Company
with additional flexibilitywith respect to dividend payments in
the future.
The approved change in the par value of the Company's
common stock from no par value to a par value of $ 5 per
share resulted in a transfer of $ 167,973,000 to paid-in capital
from common stock. In addition, proceeds from the sale of
additional common stock under the Automatic Dividend
Reinvestment Plan and Customer Stock Purchase Plan
subsequent to February 9, 1989 amounting to $ 2,315,000
have been recorded as paid-in capital.

NOTE 7 —CAPITALIZATION- LONG-TERM DEBT
Details of long-term debt are shown below:
December 31
1989

1988

thousands of Dollars)

~Matutit Date

Series

First Mortgage Bonds:
13
14

s/s

%

81/s%

December 4, 1992
June 12, 1994
September 1, 1994

.

July 2, 1995
January 15, 1999

11

/s%
9s/s %

June 1, 2000

7'/4

February 1, 2002
April 15, 2004.......
November 1, 2005..

%

92/4%

10'/s

%
62/4 %
103/4 %

.

June 1, 2007 .
September 15, 2009
December 1, 2028

8.375%

$ 35,000
45,000

$ 35,000
45,000

50,0QQ

50,0QQ

20,000
20,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
20,000
4,500
20,000
16 700
291 200

20,000
20,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
20,000
4,500
20,000
16 700
291 200

16,700
16,700
36,250
36,000
33,700
9 900
149 250

16,700
16,700
36,250
36,000
33,700
9 900
149,250

2,890
4,309
209
447 440

2,973
5,434
252
448 605

Promissory Notes issued in connection with the sale by the New York State Energy
Research and Development Authority of tax-exempt pollution control revenue bonds:
1984
1984
1985
1985
1987
1987

Series
Series
Series
Series
Series
Series

A
B

A
B

A
B

October 1, 2014..
October 1, 2014..
November 1, 2020.
November 1, 2020.
June 1, 2027
June 1, 2027

Promissory Notes (net of sinking fund requirements):
4.85%
December 1, 1995
Secured Notes Payable of Subsidiary ..........
Unamortized Premium and Discount on Debt- Net.
Total long-term debt.
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The pollution control bonds, Series A and B, issued in
1984, bore interest at 7 1/2% per annum through September
30, 1989. Effective October 1, 1989, the Company exercised
its one-time option to convert each series to a long-term rate
fixed'at 7.375%.
The pollution control bonds, Series A and B, issued in 1985
are variable rate obligations subject to weekly repricing and
investor tender. The Company has a one-time option for each
series to convert to a long-term fixed rate. The pollution
control bonds, Series A and B, issued in 1987 are also variable
rate obligations subject to weekly repricing and investor
tender. The Company has a one-time option for each series to
convert to a long-term fixed rate.
In its 1987 and 1989 rate orders, the PSC allowed recovery of
interest cost on the 1985 and 1987 Series variable rate obligations. The following table compares the allowed recovery rate
to the actual high and low rates in effect during 1989:

Issue

1985 SeriesA & B
1987 Series A
1987 Series B

Allowed Rate
Flectric
C'as
5.75%
4.50%

5.75
6.15

4.50
4.50

Actual Rates
law
~Hi h
7.75%
5.50%

8.15
7.75

5.90
5.50

Net periodic pension cost for 1989 and 1988 includes the
following components:

Service cost- benefits earned during
the period
Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation ............................
Actual return on plan assets ...............
Net amortization and deferral ............
Net periodic pension cost ...............

NOTE 8 - POST EMPLOYMENTBENEFITS

Retirement Income Plan: The Company has a
noncontributory retirement income plan (Plan) covering
substantially all of its employees. The Plan provides pension
benefits that are based on the employee's compensation and
years of service. It has been the Company's practice to provide
periodic updates to the benefit formula stated in the Plan.
Effective January 1, 1987, the Company implemented SFAS
No. 87, "Employers'ccounting for Pensions" (SFAS 87).
The Company's funding policy, since such implementation, is
to make annual contributions equal to the amount of net
periodic pension cost, but not less than the minimum
requirement under ERISA. The effect of this change was a
reduction of pension cost of $ 780,000 in 1987, the year of
adoption. Approximately 73% of the cost for the year 1989,
72% for the year 1988 and 70% for the year 1987 were charged
to expense.

$ 4,445
9,994
(30,468)
18 946
$ 2 917

$ 3,443

9,069
50

~9938
$ 2 624

The following table sets forth the Plan's funded status at
September 30, 1989 and 1988:
1989

1988

'Ihousands of Dollars)
Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:
Accumulated benefit obligation,
including vested benefits
of $ 112,846 and $ 103,962 ............ $ 115 164
$ 106 122
Projected benefit obligation for
service rendered to date..........,.. $ 145,763
$ 131,827
172 362 (a) 145 923
Plan assets at market value..................
Excess of plan assets over projected

benefit obligation .............................
Unrecognized net (gain) ................... ..
Prior service cost not yet recognized
in net periodic pension cost ...........
Unrecognized net asset being
amortized over 15.25 years .............
Amount contributed to Plan during
~

Deferral was granted for any variation above or below the
allowed rates for disposition in future rate cases.
Expenses incurred on debt issues and any discount or
premium on debt are deferred and amortized over the lives
of the related issues.
Secured notes payable of a subsidiary of the Company
consists principally of term loans to finance the installation of
a cogeneration facility and related energy conservation
equipment at a Massachusetts manufacturing company. Such
loans accrue interest at the prime lending rate plus 3/4 of 1%
and are amortizing in 60 equal installments through
December 31, 1993. Such loans are secured principally by
certain power purchase agreements and project assets.

1988

1989

ghousands of Dollars)

fourth

quarter...

26,599
(20,367)

14,096
(6,391)

(7,783)

(8,418)

551

711

Prepaid (pension liability) pension cost
recognized in the Balance Sheet.... 3
(a)

1

—

~$

2

At the valuation date, approximately

93% of the Plan's
assets were invested in equities and bonds. The
remainder was invested primarily in convertible
securities and real estate.

The weighted average discount rate and rate of future
compensation levels used in determining the actuarial present
value of the projected benefit obligations were 7 1/2 percent
and 6 percent, respectively, for both years. The expected longterm rate of return on Plan assets was 8 1/2 percent for 1988
and 1989.

Other Post Employment Benefits: In addition to
providing pension benefits, the Company provides certain
health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees.
Substantially all of the Company's employees may become
eligible for these benefits ifthey reach retirement age while
working for the Company. These and similar benefits for
active employees are provided through insurance companies
whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during the
year. The annual insurance premiums recorded by the
Company for providing those benefits were $ 5,747,000 for
1989, $ 5,316,000 for 1988 and $ 4,639,000 for 1987. The cost of
providing retirees with those benefits is not separable from
the cost of providing those benefits for the active employees.

NOTE 9 - SALE OF RECEIVABLES AND RESERVE
FOR UNCOLLECrIBLEACCOUNTS

In November 1987, the Company entered into a program
to sell on a daily basis, without recourse, its accounts
receivables from retail customers. Such program provides
the Company with cash immediately and, therefore, reduces
its working capital requirements. The program also serves to
improve the Company's common equity ratio. The amount of
the outstanding receivables sold as of December 31, 1989,
1988 and 198? were $ 11.8 million, $ 28.8 million and $ 35.5
million, respectively. The average daily amount of accounts
receivable sold was $ 11.9 million in 1989, $ 33.6 million in
1988 and $ 32.7 million in 1987 and the weighted average
discount rate was 9.32% for 1989, 10.01% for 1988 and

for 1987.
The costs associated with the sale of receivables are
charged to operating expense and amounted to $ 1.1 million
in 1989, $ 3.3 million in 1988 and $ 551,000 in 1987.
The Company had an uncollectible reserve balance at
December 31, 1989 of $ 400,000 and $ 100,000 at December
9.786%

31, 1988.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES
Roseton Plant: The Company currently has a 35%
undivided interest in the ownership and output of the 1,200
mw. Roseton Plant. The Company is acting as agent for the
cotenant owners with respect to operation of the Roseton
Plant. Generally, the owners share the costs and expenses of
the operation of the Roseton Plant in accordance with their
respective ownership interests. The Company's share of
direct operating expense for the Roseton Plant is included in
the appropriate expense classification in the accompanying
Statement of Income.
The Company has the option to purchase the interests of
Niagara Mohawk (25%) and of Consolidated Edison
Company of New York, Inc. (40%) in the Roseton Plant in
December 2004. Exercise of such option is subject to the
approval of the PSC.
In order to make provision for anticipated requirements
for additional generating capacity commencing in the mid1990's, the Company and Niagara Mohawk have entered into
an agreement (Amendment) revising the option which the
Company has to buy Niagara Mohawk's interest in the
Roseton Plant. Pursuant to the Amendment, Niagara
Mohawk will sell to the Company a 2.5% interest in the
Roseton Plant on December 31, 1994 and on each succeeding
December 31, through and including December 31, 2QQ3,
which will be all of Niagara Mohawk's interest in the Roseton
Plant. In exchange, Niagara Mohawk willhave the option to
repurchase from the Company up to a 25% interest in the
Roseton Plant in December 2004. The prices for the
purchases will be based on the depreciated book cost of the
Roseton Plant assuming straight-line amortization to provide
for a fully amortized facility as of December 31, 2009.
Pursuant to the Amendment, the Company retains the option
to repurchase Niagara Mohawk's remaining interest in that
Plant when that Plant reaches the end of its physical life.
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By joint petition filed with the PSC on February 29, 1988,
the Company and Niagara Mohawk requested the PSC to
approve the transfers of interests in the Roseton Plant
contemplated by the Amendment. On July 19, 1988, the PSC
issued an order establishing a proceeding to consider sQch
joint petition. Among the issues identified by the PSC for
consideration in such proceeding are (i) the relationship of
the bidding process, set forth in a June 1988 PSC order
applicable to the major New York State electric utilities, to
such transfers, (ii) the potential for demand side management as an alternative to the transfers contemplated by the
Amendment and (iii) cer tain technical, accounting and
forecasting issues regarding the information and studies
submitted by the Company and Niagara Mohawk in support
of the joint petition.
In May 1989, the Company and the PSC Staff reached a
Stipulation Agreement indicating that, giving consideration
to expected demand side management activities, the
proposed transfers of interest were one alternative which
would meet the Company's future needs for power. The
Company has also advised the PSC that the Company will
issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) following the PSC
approval of the form of the RFP, for alternative power supply
arrangements approximating the capacity reflected in the
proposed transfers of interest, so as to test the reasonableness of the proposed transfers of interest. No prediction can
be made by the Company as to whether the PSC will approve
the Company's form of RFP or how such bids as may be
received in response to the RFP would compare to the
proposed transfers of interest, nor can the Company predict
what action the PSC may ultimately take in connection with
the joint petition.

Construction Program: Reference is made to
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" for information
regarding the Company's construction program for the
five-year period 1990-1994.
Nuclear Liabilityand Insurance: In August 1988,
legislation was enacted amending the provisions of the PriceAnderson Act with respect to liabilityand insurance for
federally licensed nuclear facilities. Pursuant to the amended
law, the authorization of the NRC to enter into new indemnity
agreements with licensees of nuclear power plants has been
extended to August 1, 2002. Under the amended law, the
maximum public liabilitywhich can be imposed for a nuclear
incident at a licensed nuclear electric generating facility is
$ 7.445 billion (assuming 115 licensed nuclear units), which
amount is covered by (a) private insurance amounting to
$ 200 million and (b) $ 7.245 billion provided by an industry
retrospective rating plan established under the PriceAnderson Act and regulations promulgated by the NRC
thereunder. Under such retrospective rating plan, in the
event of a nuclear incident at any nuclear unit in the United
States resulting in losses in excess of the $ 200 million private
insurance, each other licensed nuclear unit can be assessed
up to $ 63 million to cover liabilities, subject to an additional
surcharge of $ 3.15 million per nuclear unit in the event that
the funds provided by the retrospective rating plan were '"
insufficient to cover liability claims and legal costs arising out

~

of each incident. The amounts which a nuclear unit can be
assessed under the retrospective rating plan are subject to
increases for inflation. The maximum annual assessment
under tive retrospective plan is limited to $ 10 million per unit
per calendar year for each nuclear incident. Under the
provisions of the amended law, the Company's potential
assessment pursuant to the retrospective rating plan (based
on its 9% ownership interest in NMP-2 and assuming that the
other NMP-2 cotenants were to contribute their
proportionate shares of the potential assessments) would be
$ 5.67 million (subject to adjustment for inflation), and the
Company could be assessed $ 283,500 (subject to adjustment

for inflation) in respect to the additional surcharge, but
would be limited to a maximum assessment of $ 900,000 in
any year with respect to any nuclear incident The public
liability insurance coverage of $ 200 million required under
the Price-Anderson Act for NMP-2 is provided to Niagara
Mohawk by American Nuclear Insurers.
On October 20, 1988, the Company entered into anagreement with Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL)
which provides for insurance to cover the additional costs of
replacement power incurred by the Company in the event of a
prolonged accidental outage of NMP-2. This coverage was
renewed for an additional year on September 15, 1989. Under
this insurance arrangement, NEILwill pay up to $ 233,000 per
week to the Company to cover the additional costs of
replacement power if NMP-2 experiences a continuous
accidental outage which extends beyond 51 weeks. The
payments for replacement power will continue for 52 weeks
after expiration of the 21-week deductible period and
thereafter the insurer shall pay 67% of the weekly indemnity
for a second 52-week period and 33% for a third 52-week
period. The annual premium for this insurance coverage is
$ 78,000. A one-time reserve premium equal to 13% of the
annual premium must be paid initially.The reserve premium
is subject to adjustment annually ifthe annual premium is
changed. Additional premiums may have to be paid under a
retrospective rating program. This insurance from NEIL is
intended to help protect the Company against the possible
economic effects of being required to bear the costs of
replacement power in the event of a prolonged accidental
outage at NMP-2. In circumstances related to other nuclear
plants, utilities have been required by regulatory bodies to
bear replacement power costs where accidental outages have
been attributed to the fault of the utilities.

Natural Gas Supply: The Company has long-term
contracts for the supply of natural gas with three pipeline
suppliers which will remain in effect until terminated by
either party upon a 12-month written notice. During 1989 all
three of the contracts were restructured to provide additional
services to the Company. One contract was restructured to
convert a portion of the contract to firm transportation. This
will allow the Company to purchase gas directly from a thirdparty supplier at a cost lower than pipeline gas even during
winter months when interruptible transportation is curtailed.
In addition, a portion of this contract was converted to gas
storage which should also provide savings to the Company's
customers. Among the other benefits gained from the
restructuring was the ability to inject third-party gas into

storage which should also result in an overall lower cost of
gas supply. The Company also has in place a contract for
vaporized liquefied natural gas. This contract will remain in
effect through March 31, 1993 and willcontinue from year to
year thereafter unless terminated by either party upon one
year's prior written notice.
During the year the Company entered into a new storage
agreement which will increase its peak day supply by 3,758
mcf. This contract will remain in effect until March 31, 2012,
and thereafter unless cancelled by either party upon a 24month prior written notice. This contract will increase the
Company's gas storage capability to 32,863 mcf. per day.
All contracts are under tariffs on file with and approved by
the FERC except those for the purchase of third-party gas
which is not within FERC jurisdiction.

Take-or-Pay Gas Costs: Many interstate gas pipeline
companies face substantial liabilities under contracts with
gas producers which require the pipeline company to pay for
a minimum amount of gas whether the gas is actually taken
from the producer or not (take-or-pay costs). By notice dated
April 20, 1988, the Public Service Commission initiated a
proceeding to determine, among other matters, the
recoverability and allocation in gas rates of New York State
distribution companies of contract take-or-pay costs charged
them by pipeline suppliers. In connection with such
proceeding, the PSC has issued several orders which have
directed among other things that 65% of take-or-pay costs
incurred by the Company may be recovered through
current rates, subject to refund. Charges not subject to such
conditional recovery are deferred with interest for
subsequent consideration by the PSC.
In comments filed with the PSC, the Company has
contended that there is no basis on which the responsibility
for its pipeline suppliers'ake-or-pay liability can be
attributed to it. In addition, it is the Company's position that
the PSC lacks any authority to deny it recovery of costs
included in FERC approved gas rates and would intend to
oppose any attempt by the PSC to require it to absorb any
taker-pay or contract reformation costs which are included
in its pipeline suppliers'ERC approved rates.
The Company is unable at this time to estimate the amount
of taker-pay costs which may ultimately be included in its
pipeline suppliers'harges to it or to predict what action the
PSC might take to require the Company to absorb any portion
of such costs. The flnal amount of such costs willdepend on
FERC proceedings and court litigation, the outcome of which
the Company is not able to predict. Depending on the outcome
of such proceedings and litigation, the final amount of such
taker-pay costs could be several million dollars, which could
have a material adverse effect on the Company's future
earnings, ifthe Company were to be required by the PSC to
absorb a substantial portion.
'eing

Accrued Employees'acation Pay: The Company's
employees begin accruing vacation in July of each year for
use in the following year, the monthly accrual of days is
based on the number of years of service for each employee.
However, for rate-making purposes, vacation pay is
recognized as an allowable expense only when paid.
Consistent with this rate-making treatment, the Company

accrued $ 3.2 million and $ 3.1 million as of December 31,
1989 and 1988, respectively, as a current liabilityfor an
estimate of earned vacation pay and recorded a deferred
charge representing the future recoverability of this cost.

NOTE 11 - DEPARTMENTALINFORMATION

Rental Expenses and Lease Commitments: The
Company has lease commitments expiring at various dates,
principally for real property and data processing equipment.
None of these leases involves any major facilities or any
material noncancelable rental commitments. Although
certain items meet the criteria for recording as capital leases,
such recognition would have no significant effect on the
financial statements. Therefore, all items are treated as
operating leases for rate-making and accounting purposes.

The Company is engaged in the electric and natural gas
utilitybusinesses. Certain information regarding'these
segments is set forth in the following table. General
~
corporate expenses, property common to both segments and
depreciation of such common property have been allocated
to the segments in accordance with practice established for
regulatory purposes.

Electric
1989

1988

1987

1989

Gas
1988

1987

thousands of Dollars)

Operating Revenues.

$ 403 235

$ 379 249

S374 951

145,835

126,119

134,072

32,835
133 826
312 496

29,636
127 405
283 160

26,017
110 474
270 563

90,739

96,089

18 826

Operating Income.

$~66 767

$~59 136

$ 54 126

39,275
2,509
~19 347
~61 131

31,981
2,302
~18 504
~52 787

27,131
2,146
17 250
46 527

104,388

5,636

6,349

7,599

20 081

28 862

~1002

762

2 614

~71913

8 76008

8 75 526

$~4634

~4587
$

6 4 985

Construction Expenditures.

8 33 443

8 45 387

8 94 286

$~8644

~8085
$

6 6 406

Identifiable Assets at December 31*
Net UtilityPlant ..
Construction Work in Progress .......
Total UtilityPlant.
Materials and Supplies ..
Total.

$ 759,652
22 147
781,799
22 890
804
689
$

$ 764,328
20 639
784,967
23 110
$ 808 077

$ 460,080
315 864
775,944
18 795
$794 739

$ 61,159

$ 55,418

$ 49,040

~4847

~4518

5 131

66,006

59,936

54,171
3 568
~57 739

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and Purchased Electricity....
Purchased Natural Gas.
Depreciation and Amortization ....
Other, excluding income tax ........
Total.
Operating Income before Income Tax .....
Federal Income Tax, including
deferred income tax- net

1

~6283

~3445

~72 289

$~63 381

* Identifiable assets not included herein
are considered to be corporate assets and have not been allocated between the electric and gas
segments.

NOTE 12 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIALDATA
(Unaudited)
Selected financial data for each quarterly period within
1988 and 1989 are presented below:
Income
Available

for
Operating
Revenues

Quarter Ended:
March 31, 1988..
June 30, 1988..
September 30, 1988 ..
December 31, 1988.

March 31, 1989.
June 30, 1989
September 30, 1989
December 31, 1989.

Operating
Income
(Thousands of Dollars)

Common
Stock

Earnings Per
Average
Share of
Common
Stock
~On

tnt

nn

dt

n

(Dollars)

$ 122,656
102,665
106,658
106,406

$ 26,630
18,704
20,450
14,811

$ 15,737
8,219
9,453
4,642

$ 1.09
.57
.65
.32

$ 130,581
111,479
108,822
119,120

$ 24,485
17,764
18,783
15,515

$ 13,511
7,442
8,102
4,364

$ .93
.51
.55
.30

MtIWAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
CAPITALRESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
As shown in the Statement of Cash Flows, the cash
expenditures related to the Company's construction
program amounted to $ 41.2 million in 1989, a decrease of
$ 11.3 million from the $ 52.5 million expended in 1988. Such
expenditures were funded from internal sources; proceeds
($ 4.0 million) from the issuance of common stock under the
Company's Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Plan and its
Customer Stock Purchase Plan; and the redemption of
$ 10.2 million of temporary cash investments which were
outstanding at the beginning of the year.
During 1989, the Company elected to cause the New
York State Energy Research and Development Authority to
convert to a fixed rate of interest, effective October 1, 1989,
$ 33.4 million of its Pollution Control Revenue Bonds
(Central Hudson Projects) (Bonds) for which the Company
had issued and had outstanding as security for such Bonds
a like amount of its variable rate promissory notes (Notes).
Such Bonds and the related promissory notes were issued
in 1984 at an initial fixed rate of 7.5% for five years through
September 30, 1989. As a result of such conversion, such
Bonds and Notes bear a fixed rate of interest of 7.375%
per annum from October 1, 1989 until maturity on
October 1, 2014.
In November 1989, the Company petitioned the PSC for
authority to issue and sell prior to June 30, 1992 not more
than $ 100 million of its first mortgage bonds of which $ 80
million would be used to optionally redeem and refund high
coupon debt. The first series of bonds to be refinanced
would be the 13% series ($ 35 million principal amount)
issued in 1982 and due December 4, 1992. The first
mandatory call date of these bonds was December 4, 1989;
however, the call premium of 4% virtually precludes the
redeinption of such bonds until December 4, 1990 when the

bonds can be called at par. The second series of bonds to be
refinanced would be the 14 5/8% series ($ 45 million
principal amount) issued in 1984 and due June 12, 1994.
Although not callable prior to June 12, 1991, such bonds
may be mandatorily redeemed after June 12, 1991 and prior
to June 12, 1992 with a call premium of 103.25%. After June
12, 1992 and prior to June 12, 1993 the call premium drops
to 101.625%. The Company will review the prevailing
interest rates during that time frame to determine the
economic feasibility of redeeming these bonds with a call
premium of 103.25% or 101.625%.
During 1989, the Company also down-sized its revolving
credit facility from $ 70 million to $ 50 million. The primary
reasons for this change were twofold. First, the Company's
major construction program is completed, and, as a result,
the need to access the capital markets has declined
dramatically. Second, in relation to the Company's capital
structure, and absent a major construction program, a $ 70
million line of credit appeared unwarranted.
At December 31, 1989, the Company had no short-term
debt outstanding apart from current maturities of long-term
debt; it had $ 10.5 million invested in short-term securities,
and it had $ 52 million of short-term credit available.
As shown in the table below, cash construction
expenditures for 1990 are estimated to be $ 77.5 million, an
increase of $ 36.3 million over 1989 expenditures. Based on
present projections, approximately 74% of the 1990 expenditures willbe funded from internal sources and the balance
willcome from redeeming the temporary cash investments
outstanding at year-end 1989 and short-term borrowings.
Estimates of construction expenditures, internal funds,
mandatory redemption of long-term securities, optional
refunding of higheoupon debt, and working capital
requirements for the five-year period 1990-1994 are set
forth by year in the following table:
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Total
1990

Gas

Common .
Connection to Iroquois Gas Pipeline ...
Roseton Buy-back
Nuclear Fuel

Internal Funds Available:
Depreciation Accruals .
Deferred Income Tax-Net ...
Other

Total.
Excess of Construction Expenditures over
Internal Funds .

Mandatory Redemption of
Long-Term Securities:
Long-Term Debt
Preferred Stock
Total .
Optional Refunding of High
Coupon Debt ..
...

Total Cash Requirements

1990-1994

$ 33,900
5,300
14,400

ISO,7OO

7,400
17,700
12,800

$ 44,100
7,200
16,500
500

$ 39,100
7,300
15,200

2 200
77 500

300
88 900

2 800
71 100

4 900
66 500

59 900

$ 215,000
34,200
83,000
15,200
6,300
10 200
363 900

37,000
10,300
10 400
57 700

39,800
11,100
8 400
59 300

42,900
10,500
7 800
61 200

45,100
8,600
9 400
63 100

46,000
9,100
10 700
65 800

210,800
49,600
46 700
307 100

19 800

29 600

9 900

3 400

~5900

56 800

100

4,100

4,100

100

4 100

4 100

4,100
800
4 900

54,100
800
54 900

66,500
1 600
68 100

35 000

45 000

17 900

6300

6000

37 000

$ 85 000

~20 000

80 000

i

5 700

6 000

6 100

14 000

$ 55 000

~211 000

for funds used during construction (AFDC), a noncash item.

1987

42

1994

$ 47,200
7,000
19,200
1,900

Estimates of construction expenditures are subject to
continuous review and adjustment, and actual construction
expenditures may vary from such estimates. The
depreciation accrual for NMP-2 assumes a 2.5% annual rate
applied to the allowed investment included in rate base. The
assumed amortization rate for the Danskammer coal
reconversion investment is 5%. The deferred income tax
projections are based on federal income tax law under the
Tax Reform Act of 1986.
As shown in the table above, it is presently estimated that
funds available from internal sources will finance 84% of the
Company's cash construction expenditures for the five-year
period 1990-1994. During this same five-year period, total
external financing requirements are projected to amount to
$ 211 million, of which $ 146.5 million is related to the
redemption of maturing long-term debt.
The Company's year-end capital structure for the last
three years is as follows:

Long-term Debt .............
Short-term Debt ............
Preferred Stock .............
Common Equity ............

1993

6,300

Total.

(a) Excluding allowance

1992

(Thousands of Dollars)

Construction Expenditures (a):
Electric

Working Capital Requirements

1991

1988

1989

54.3%
.5

53.6%

52.8%

9.8
35.4

9.6
36.8

377

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

9.5

The Company believes its policy of recent years with
regard to capital structure still remains sound and,
accordingly, is committed to rebuilding its common equity
ratio back to the 40% - 45% range it maintained prior to the
write-off of the disallowed NMP-2 investment during the
fourth quarter of 1987. Based on present projections, the
Company believes it can rebuild its common equity ratio
back to this level during the next five years through
retained earnings and the issuance of stock through its
dividend reinvestment plan and without the need for any
additional public offering. However, in the event that these
projections do not materialize and the common equity ratio
does not recover as fast as currently projected, the
Company would give serious consideration to issuing
additional stock.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis includes an
explanation of significant changes in revenues and
expenses during the years 1987, 1988 and 1989. Additional
information relating to changes between these years is
provided in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Notes) on pages 28 through 41 of this Report.

to the exclusion of the disallowed investment from rate
base, the PSC, in determining the Company's cost of
capital, deducted the cost disallowance exclusively against
common equity rather than proportionately across the
entire capital structure. Primarily as a result of this latter
action, the overall rate of return on the Company's
allowable plant investment was lowered to 10.36% as
compared to 10.66% in the 1986 rate order.
The Went reduction in 1988 per share earnings, when
compared to comparable 1987 per share earnings of $ 2.66,
resulted primarily from the effects of lower rates of return
for both the electric and gas departments. The 1988 results
reflected a lower return on common equity for the electric
department of 12.7% for the last five months of the year
compared to the 13.4% return previously authorized. Also,
the Company's gas rate reduction, which became effective
on September 1, 1987, lowered the return on common
equity for the gas department from 15.7% to 12.9%.
Consequently, 1987 had eight months of earnings from the
gas business based on a 15.7% return on common equity,
whereas 19SS earnings were based on a 12.9% common
equity return for the entire year.
The 3Went reduction in 1989 per share earnings
resulted principally from moderating sales growth and
expense increases not provided for in the rate-making
process. Own territory electric sales increased only 3.5%
compared to the year earlier growth rate of 5.3%. Residential sales, which provide the highest operating margins,
increased only 1% compared to an 8% increase in 1988.
NMP-2 operation and maintenance expenses substantially
exceeded expense levels provided for in rates. Also,
subsidiary company results were lower in 1989 because
1988 results included substantial fee income and investment
tax credits which were associated with the completion of
two major hydroelectric projects at the end of the year.

EARNINGS
Earnings'per share of common stock are shown after
provision for dividends on preferred stock and are
computed on the basis of the average number of common
shares outstanding during the year. The number of
common shares, the earnings per share, the percentage
change and the rate of return earned on average common
equity are as follows:
1987

Average Shares
Outstanding (000's) ............. 14,230
Earnings (Loss) Per Share ..... $ (8.12)
% Increase (Decrease)
over Prior Year ....................
N/A
Return Earned on Common
Equity per Books**.............. 11.9%*

1988

1989

14,473
$ 2.63

14,657
$ 2.28

N/A
12.7%

(13%)

10.4%

* Excludes effect of adoption of SFAS 90
**Return on equity for regulatory purposes differs
The net loss for 1987 reflects the effect of adopting SFAS
90 and recording the write-off of the NMP-2 disallowance.

The writ~ffof the NMP-2 disallowance reduced earnings
by $ 10.78 per share and the reversal of $ 15.9 million of
AFDC accrued on the disallowed NMP-2 investment in
calendar year 1987 reduced earnings by $ 1.12 per share.
Earnings for 1987, excluding the effect of the $ 10.78
reduction due to the writ~ffof the NMP-2 disallowance,
would have been $ 2.66 per share ($ 10.78- $ 8.12).
Besides the effect of the write-offfor financial reporting
purposes, 1987 earnings were also adversely affected by the
rate order issued by the PSC in July 1987 which
implemented the rate-making treatment for the disallowed
portion of the Company's 9% interest in NMP-2. In addition

OPERATING REVENUES

Such reductions more than offset the growth in revenue
resulting from increased sales. In 1988, however, the
increase in revenues from higher sales of electricity and
gas were greater than the reductions resulting f'rom lower
base rates for electric and gas service and lower fuel costs.
The 1989 increase in revenues was due to increased sales of
electricity both within the service territory and to other
utilities and increased revenues collected pursuant to the
electric and gas fuel adjustment clauses. Details of the
revenue changes are as follows:

Total operating revenues decreased $ 9.5 million (2%) in
but increased $ 9.3 million (2%) in 1988 and $ 31.6
million (7%) in 1989. The decline in revenues for 1987 was
caused primarily by lower fuel costs which resulted I'rom
the burning of coal as a fuel in 1987. The lower fuel costs
reduced the amount of revenues collected through the
electric fuel cost adjustment clause and also the amount of
revenues received I'rom sales of electricity to other utilities.
1987

Increase or (Decrease) from Prior Year

Electric
Customer sales.
Sales to other utilities.
Increases (decreases) in base rates .............
Fuel cost changes reflected in base rates....
Fuel cost adjustment.
Deferred revenues.
Miscellaneous .
Total ..

$ 16,693

(12,285)
9,098
(39,596)
22,225
1,425
288

1989

1988

1987
Gas
$ (2,186)

(599)

(4,043)
(2,692)
2 198

~7822)

Electric

Gas

$ 4,001

(3,117)

$ 8772
10,662
(1,444)

(63)
3,907
L2060)
$ 5 010

5,072
462
462
~23 986

Electric
Gas
(Thousands of Dollars)
$ 17,542
(4,028)
297
(27,621)
12,372
3,834
1 902
4 298

$ 6,343

5,929
(3,451)
1 152

~7631
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Effective April 1985, the PSC revised the electric fuel cost
adjustment clause to provide for a partial sharing of fuel cost
variations, pursuant to an incentive/penalty formula. The
change adopted by the PSC requires an 85%/15% sharing, on
average, between the customers and the Company for the
first $ 20 million of variations in actual fuel costs from the
forecasted amounts which have been approved by the PSC
for a specific twelve-month period. Any variations in excess of
$ 20 million are credited or charged in total to the customers.
See Note 1,"Deferred Electric Fuel Costs."
Gross revenues from sales of electricity to other utilities
decreased 42% in 1987, 23% in 1988 and increased 81% in
1989. In its July 1986 Order, the PSC imputed $ 6.2 million of
net revenue (gross revenues less incremental costs,

principally fuel) in base rates. In its July 1987 electric rate
order, the imputed amount was increased to $ 6.6 million.
The imputed amount contained in the May 198&electric
rate order was $ 4.2 million. The PSC requires an 80%/$ 0%
sharing between customers and the Company of any
variations from the imputed amount, either higher or lower.
The Company reflects any credits or charges to its
customers resulting from these provisions through the
electric fuel cost adjustment clause. The following table sets
forth the variation in actual net revenue realized from the
amounts imputed; the amount credited,.or charged, to retail
customers through the electric fuel cost adjustment clause;
and the amount of such net revenues retained by the
Company and recognized in income:
1987

1988

1989

(Thousands of Dollars)

Variation in Actual Net Revenue from
Imputed Amounts
Customer (Charge) Credit
Amount Recognized by Company

The Company's largest customer is International
Business Machines Corporation (IBM). For the year 1989,

Total kwh. sales of electricity within the Company's
service territory increased 4.7% in 1987, 5.3% in 1988 and
3.5% in 1989. Firm sales of natural gas, excluding sales to
the electric department, increased 3% in 1987, 12% in 1988
and 4% in 1989. Increases in sales by major customer
classification are set forth below:

Electric %
Residential ......
Commercial ....

1987
6
6

Industrial ........

2

Residential ......
Commercial ....

1987
3
2

Industrial ........

5

1988
8
8
2

Gas%
1988
8
16
16

1989
1

4
6

1989
2
3
30

Residential electric sales: Residential electric sales are
primarily affected by the growth in customers and the
change in kwh. usage per customer. Customer usage is also
sensitive to weather. Changes in these components are set
forth in the table below (parentheses denote decrease):
Residential Sales
1987

Growth in number
of customers .....................
Change in average usage
per customer ....................
Changein heating
degree days ......................

44,

2

1988
3

S(3,925)

$ (267)

~3140
~3733

~214
~$

$ 4,499
3 399
3 900
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sales to IBM accounted for 18% of the Company's total
7% of its total gas revenues.

electric revenues and

Commercial electric sales: Commercial sales
increased 6% in 1987 due to a combination of a 3% increase
in the number of customers and a 3% increase in the usage
per customer. The 8% increase in commercial sales in 1988
reflected a 3% increase in the number of customers and a 4%
increase in usage per customer. The commercial sales
increase of 4% in 1989 was primarily due to a 4% growth in
the number of customers.

Industrial electric sales: The 2% increase in both 1987
and 1988 reflected a combination of customer growth and
increased customer usage. The 1989 increase of 6% was
primarily due to the increased usage at existing
manufacturing facilities and a full year's operation of a
container manufacturer at Stewart International Airport
which commenced operatiori in July 1988.
Gas sales —firm: The following tables set forth
customer growth, changes in customer usage and heating
degree days for the residential and commercial
classifications. Although the changes in residential gas
sales are primarily weather related, the growth in
customers has been a positive factor contributing to
increased sales. Commercial sales are also weather
sensitive.
Residential Sales%

%

1989
1

(7)

Growth in number
of customers ....................
Change in average usage
per customer ...................
Change in heating
degree days .....................

1987

1988

1989

3

3

2

5

~l

3

~

(7)

Gas sales —interruptible: Interruptible gas sales
decreased 4% in 1987, increased 24% in 1988 and increased
31% in 1989. The decline experienced in 1987 was attributed
to the change in the competitive position of natural gas with
alternative fuel sources for boiler fuel usage. The gas rate
decrease in September 1987 and a declining spot gas
market have helped to restore the competitive position of
natural gas as a fuel. The increases in 1988 and 1989 were
due to the favorable change in the competitive position of
the cost of natural gas as compared to the cost, which
increased, of alternative fuel sources for boiler fuel usage.

Commercial Sales%

Growth in number
of customers ....................
Change in average usage
per customer ...................
Change in heating
degree days .....................

1987

1988

1989

7

7

6

(5)

(4)

In 1987, sales to industrial customers increased primarily
due to customer growth. Firm gas sales to industrial
customers increased 16% in 1988 and 30% in 1989, aided
primarily by the opening in 1988 of a new container
manufacturing company in the service territory.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Changes in operating expenses from the prior year are
set forth below:

Increase or
1987

ecrease from Prior Year
1988

Amount

1989

Amount

5

Amount

(Thousands ol Dollars)

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and purchased electricity ...............
Purchased natural gas
Other expenses of operation ..................
Maintenance .
NMP-2 operation and maintenance .......
Depreciation and amortization ...............
Taxes, other than income tax .................
Federal income tax
Total .

S(10,548)
(6,282)
550
899
3,269
1,828

~7978
~818 262

The most significant elements of cost are fuel and
purchased electricity in the Electric Department and
purchased natural gas in the Gas Department.
Approximately 36% in 1987, 33% in 1988 and 36% in 1989 of
every revenue dollar billed in the Electric Department was
expended for the combined cost of fuel used in electric
generation and purchased electricity. The corresponding
figures in the Gas Department for the cost of purchased gas
are 50%, 54% and 59%, respectively.
In 1987 the cost of fuel used in electric generation and
the cost of purchased electricity decreased $ 6.2 million (6%)
and $ 4.3 million (13%), respectively, which reflects the
effect of lower fuel costs due to the reconversion to coal
firing of Danskammer Units 3 and 4, a 1% decrease in
system output and a 13% decrease in purchases. The $ 8.0
million (6%) decrease in 1988 of the combined cost of fuel
used in electric generation and purchased electricity
reflects the effects of lower fuel costs resulting from the use
of lowest nuclear fuel at NMP-2, the burning of coal at
Danskammer Units 3 and 4 for a full year and a decrease in
mogul costly purchases from other utilities due to the
availability of more Company-owned generation. In 1989 the
combined cost of fuel used in electric generation and the

(7 3)
(18.8)
9
4.6
13.1
4.3

(20.2)
(5.0)

$ (7,953)
4,850
6,665
1,449
6,497
3,775
3,574

(5.9)
17.9
10.6
7.0

$ 19,716
7,294
1,275
(691)
3,393
3,406
3,287

~9633

13.4
8.1
(30.6)

~2015

3 9224

2.6

335 665

15.6
22.8
1.8
(3.1)
52.2
10.7
6.9
(9.2)
10.0

purchased electricity increased $ 20 million (15.6%),
resulting from increased sales of electricity both within
the service territory and to other utilities, and higher
fuel prices.
The following table shows the average cost per million
Btu for the Company's three major generating plants during
the last five years:
Average Cost ($ /MillionBtu)

Nine Mile

Danskammer Plant
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989

4.32
2.93
2.26
2.13
2.17

Roseton Plant
4.18
2.56
2.95
2.35
2.67

2Plant

1.16
1.04

In an effort to keep the cost of electricity at the lowest
reasonable level, the Company purchases energy from
member companies of the New York Power Pool whenever
such energy can be purchased at a unit cost lower than
the incremental cost of generating the energy in the
Company's plants.
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The amount of natural gas purchased, excluding gas
burned as boiler fuel, and the cost per mcf. during the last
five years are set forth in the following table:

Year

Amount of Gas
Purchased-Mcf.

1985
1986
1987
1988
1989

10,021,420
9,387,520
9,420,874
11,004,936
12,402,848

$ /Mcf.
4.14
3.64
3.04

3.00
3.22

The lower volumes of gas purchased during 1986 and 1987
result fi om lower sales of interruptible gas.
In 1987, the $ 550,000 (1%) increase in other expenses of
operation was primarily due to the net effect of higher
employee wages, increased cost of the Company's end use
efficiency program and lower research and development
expenses. The $ 6.7 million (11%) increase for 1988 in other
expenses of operation was primarily due to higher
employee wages and related fringe benefits, increased cost
of the Company's end use efficiency program, higher
insurance costs, increased costs incurred in connection
with complying with environmental regulations and the fees
paid for the sale of accounts receivable. The fees for the
accounts receivable program, which amounted to $ 3.3
million in 1988, however, are offset by savings in the cost of
capital. The $ 1.3 million (2%) increase in 1989 is primarily
due to increased charg~ffs for uncollectibles, higher
employee wages and related fringe benefits, increased cost
of the Company's end use efficiency program, higher legal
costs and increased costs associated with complying with
environmental regulations.
Increased maintenance expenses from a devastating
snowstorm in October 1987, partially offset by lower
maintenance expenses for the Company's generating units
and lower expenses for maintaining its electric transmission
substation equipment, resulted in an overall increase of
$ 900,000 (5%) for 1987. The incremental costs of the
October snowstorm amounted to approximately $ 5 million,
an amount which was 14 times greater than the $ 352,000
which was reflected in electric rates. The Company
received permission from the PSC to defer 75% of the cost
($ 3.73 million) over a three-year period commencing
August 1, 1988 and it wrote off to income in 1987 the 25%
($ 1.24 million) related to the rate year which commenced
August 1, 1987. Pursuant to the 1989 electric rate order, the
remaining balances of the deferred storm costs were offset
against Mirror CWIP. The $ 1.4 million (7%) increase in 1988
maintenance expense was primarily due to a $ 2.0 million
increase in the cost for maintaining the Company's
generating units. This increase reflected a major overhaul
of Unit 1 at the Roseton Plant and an additional normal
overhaul at the Danskammer Plant because Unit 3 was
undergoing reconversion to coal-firing in 1987 and
consequently did not require its annual overhaul.
Maintenance expenses for the rest of the Company's
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facilities were $ 600,000 less than 1987 because 1987
expenses included $ 1.24 million for the abnormal snowstorm. Maintenance expenses for 1989 decreased $ 691,000
(3%) primarily due to a decrease in tree-trimming costs and
the completion of the amortization of Sturgeon Pool Dam
rehabilitation costs during 1988.
As more fully discussed in Note 2, NMP-2 was deemed to
have commenced commercial operation on April 5, 1988.
Consequently, operating expenses, taxes and depreciation
pertaining to operation subsequent to that date have been
included in the Companies financial results for 1988 and
1989. Most of the additional expenses were provided for
through the rate-making process. However, the operation
and maintenance expenses exceeded the amounts either
provided for in rates or deferred by $ 1.4 million for 1988
and $ 2.5 million for 1989 and, consequently, reduced
earnings by 6 cents and 11 cents, respectively, in each of
the two years. Under the terms of the May 1989 electric
rate order, only 80% ($ 3,644,000) of the NMP-2 operation
and maintenance labor and invoice expenses projected for
the Rate Year are reflected in rates. The Company was
authorized to defer any excess expenses over such amount
up to $ 911,000 (20% of the amount of expenses projected for
the Rate Year). Amounts in excess of the $ 911,000 have
been absorbed by shareholders. The amount of such
deferred expenses at December 31, 1989 was $ 911,000. The
disposition of such amount will be resolved in the
Settlement of outstanding NMP-2 issues (see Note 2).
The Company's total provision for depreciation amounted
to 3.45% in 1987, 3.37% in 1988 and 3.28% in 1989 of the
original cost of average depreciable property. The 1987
provision reflects the commencement of depreciation on
the Danskammer Coal Reconversion investment. The 1988
provision reflects the commencement of depreciation on
NMP-2 and an increase in the amortization rate for the
Danskammer Coal Reconversion Project, pursuant to the
Stipulation Agreement, from 3.4% to 5.0%, effective
August 1, 1988. The ratio of the amount of accumulated
depreciation to the cost of depreciable property at
December 31 was 34.9% in 1987, 26.2% in 1988 and 28.2% in
1989. The decrease in this ratio for 1987 from the 1986 ratio
of 40.8% reflects the completion of the Danskammer Coal
Reconversion Project while the further reduction in 1988
reflects the transfer of the NMP-2 investment from
construction work in progress to plant in service.
State and local taxes levied on gross revenues remained
stable in 1987, decreased $ 66,000 in 1988 and increased
$ 860,000 in 1989. Property taxes, including school taxes,
increased $ 1.2 million, $ 4.3 million and $ 2.3 million in 1987,
1988 and 1989, respectively. Of the $ 4.3 million increase in
1988 and the $ 2.3 million in 1989, $ 2.3 million and $ 1.2
million, respectively, was due to the commencement of
commercial operation of NMP-2. The Temporary
Metropolitan Business Tax Surcharge increased $ 249,000
in 1987, decreased $ 298,000 in 1988 and increased $ 131,000
in 1989. These three categories of taxes accounted for the
substantial portion of the total increases in operating taxes.
See Note 4 for a detailed analysis and reconciliation of'.
the federal income tax.

OTHER INCOME AND INTEREST CHARGES
Details of the Allowance for Funds used During
Constructi0n are set forth below:

1989

1988

1987

~ousands of Dollars)
Nine Mile 2 Plant
Danskammer Coal Reconversion.
Other.
Total
Weighted Average Rate.
See Notes

1

$ 4,352
(161)
785
4
976
~$

$ 320

$ 591

674
$ 994

301
$ 892

8.90%

9.11%

10.25%

and 2 for additional information on this subject.

following table sets forth some of the pertinent data on the
Company's outstanding debt:

Total interest charges (excluding AFDC) decreased $ 1.5
million (3%) in 1987, decreased an additional $ 2.9 million
(7%) in 1988 and increased $ 1.4 million (3%) in 1989. The

1989

1988

1987

(Thousands of Dollars)

Long-Term Debt:
New Debt Issued.
Debt Retired
Outstanding at Year-end:
Amount (including current portion) .................
Effective Cost ...

Short-Term Debt:
Average Daily Amount Outstanding
Weighted Average Interest Rate .

$ 43,600
35,075

448,250

S 16,700

21,620

450,330*

449,208*

9.22%

9.47%

8.89%

$ 10,400

.

S

3,598

S

7.0%

ss
10.0%

7.84%

*Including debt of subsidiaries of $ 6.825 million in 1988 and $ 5.786 million in 1989.
See Notes 5 and 7 for additional information on this subject.

FINANCIALINDICES
Selected financial indices for the last five years are set

forth in the following table:
Pretax Coverage of Total Interest Charges:
Including AFDC .
Excluding AFDC
Pretax Coverage of Total Interest Charges
and Preferred Stock Dividends ...................
Percent of Construction Expenditures
Financed from Internal Funds .....................
AFDC and Mirror CWIP as a Percentage
of Income Available for Common Stock .....
Effective Tax Rate

1985

1986

1987*

1988

1989

3.17x
2.54x

3.14x
2.43x

2.70x
2.56x

2.58x
2.53x

2.36x
2.27x

2.60x

2.66x

2.23x

2.14x

1.99x

31%

17%

53%

50%
35%

55%
34%

16%
42%

100%
5%

33%

11%
33%

* For comparative purposes the effect of the NMP-2 disallowance under SFAS 90 has been excluded.
NMP-2 disallowance. The earnings for such tests have been
The earnings tests contained in certain of the Company's
calculated exclusive of the effect of the NMP-2 writ~ff.
long-term debt instruments have not been affected by the

COMMON SIOCK DIVIDENDS AND PRICE RANGES
Dtvidends have been paid by the Company and its
principal predecessors for 86 years, and the common stock
of the Company has been listed on the New York Stock
u3

Exchange since 1945. The price ranges and the dividends
paid for each quarterly period during the Company's last
two fiscal years were as follows:

1988

First Quarter
Second Quarter

Third Quarter .
Fourth Quarter .

~Hi h
$ 21'/4
21'/4
20'/4
21'/s

On December 18, 1987, the Company reduced its
quarterly dividend payable February 1, 1988 to $ .425 per
share as a result of the disallowance of a portion of the
Company's investment in NMP-2. On December 16, 1988,
the Company increased the quarterly dividend payable
February 1, 1989 to $ .44 per share. The Company believes
the present quarterly dividend rate of $ .44 per share is
sustainable, barring unforeseen circumstances.
The number of registered holders of common stock as of
December 31, 1989 was 29,497. Of these, 29,034 were
accounts in the names of individuals with total holdings of
6,902,996 shares, or an average of 238 shares per account.
The 463 other accounts, in the names of institutional or
other nonindividual holders, for the most part hold shares

1989

Low

Dividend

~Hi h

Low

$ 16'/s

$ .425
.425
.425
.425

$ 223/s

$ 20'/s

227/s
23~/4

20'/s
22'/s

24'/s

22

18'/s
19'/s
19'/s

Dividend
$ .44

'+.44

.44
,44

for the benefit of individuals.
The Company's 4.85% Promissory Notes due December 1,
1995 contain limitations upon the right of the Company to
declare or pay any dividend or make any other distribution
on (other than dividends or distributions payable in
Common Stock), or acquire, for a consideration, any shares
of its Common Stock unless the aggregate of all such
dividends, distributions and considerations since December
does not exceed an amount determined by a
formula. At December 31, 1989, the amount of retained
earnings available for dividends on the Company's
Common Stock under the provisions of said 4.85%
Promissory Notes was $ 23,910,000.
31, 1964

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Nuclear Operations: With the completion of NMP-2, the
Company now has a significant portion of its operating
expenses directly linked to that plant. During 1988 and 1989,
the Company's per share earnings were reduced by 6 cents
and 11 cents, respectively, because the cost of operating
NMP-2 exceeded the amounts provided for in the ratemaking process. The Company presently estimates that per
share earnings in 1990 willbe reduced by approximately 9
cents due to projected operation and maintenance expenses
being in excess of amounts provided for in electric rates for
the first five months of 1990. Part of the problem has been
that NMP-2 is an immature unit not only in terms of its
physical factors but also in terms of its operating requirements. There has not been enough actual operating
experience for NMP-2 to establish an adequate data base to
serve as a solid foundation for making future forecasts.
Additional operating experience will help solve this problem.
In addition, during the past year, the NMP-2 cotenants have
made many improvements in the budgeting and forecasting
processes. Furthermore, as set forth in Note 2, future
operation and maintenance expenses was one of the issues
addressed in the Settlement discussions. The parties have
agreed in principle that there would be a sharing of any cost
overruns, within limits, between ratepayers and shareholders during the next two years. The improved forecast
methodology and risk-sharing mechanisms should be
reflected in the Company's pending electric rate case. These
positive actions should help mitigate the adverse effect of
NMP-2 operating costs on the Company's future earnings.
In addition to the negative effect on earnings of the higherthan-forecasted operating expenses, earnings were also
adversely affected by replacement power costs due to the
Plant's availability record being less than projected. To minimize its effect on the Company's financial condition, NMP-2
must operate as an efficient, economical and reliable plant.

Growth and Sales: During the five-year period 19841988, electric sales grew at an average annual rate of 5.5%.
In 1989 the rate of growth declined to 3.5%, reflecting both
an overall slowing of the economy and the effects of a mild
winter and cool summer. While the Company does not
expect a return to the higher sales growth rate of the 1984
to 1988 period, it does expect economic conditions and
long-term sales growth in its service territory to generally
remain above the national and state averages.
A slowdown in the rate of sales growth willexert
on both operating margins and the need for rate
relief. Management will continue to aggressively manage its
cost structure and will pursue reasonable rate relief as
appropriate through the regulatory process.
'ressure

Regulation and Competition; The gas and electric
utilityindustry is in a period of dramatic change and
evolution. Foremost among the many forces buffeting the
industry is enhanced regulatory scrutiny and federal and
state initiatives to deregulate, in whole or in part, the
generation and transmission aspects of the business. Also,
regulators are aggressively pursuing means to impose
greater risks on utilityshareholders as a means to
encourage perceived long-term economic efficiencies that
might otherwise be provided by unregulated market forces.
At the same time, authorized returns to
are being reduced by some regulators, which in
concert with rising costs and moderating sales, will make
attaining earnings increases very difficult. Notwithstanding
shareholders'quity

these serious challenges, the Company remains in a sound
financial condition, continues to serve a growing economic
region and willcontinue to strive to equal or exceed the
return on common equity authorized by the PSC.
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OFFICERS OF THE BOARD

MAIUORIES. BROWN

JOHN E. MACKIII

Millbrook, NYe
Homemaker, active in civic and philanthropic
work,formerly executive in retailing and
promotional organizations; Chairwoman of the
Committee on Compensation and Succession;
Member of the Executive and Retirement
Committees

THEODORE J. CARLSON*
Poughkeepsie, NY
Chairman of the Board; Chairman of the
Executive and Retirement Committees; Member
of thc Committees on Finance, on Audit and on
Compensation and Succession

JACK EFFRON
Poughkeepsie, NY
President, EFCO Products; Member of the
Committcc on Compensation and Succession
and the Retirement Committee

RICHARD H. EYMAN
Nor walk, CT
Senior Vice President, Brouillard
Communications, Division of J. Walter
Thompson Company; Chairman of the
Committee on Audit; Member of the Executive
Committee and the Committee on
Compensation and Succession

HEINZ K FRIDRICH
Ridgefield, CP
IBM Vice President-Manufacturing,
International Business Machines Corporation;
Member of the Committee on Audit

EDWARD E X. GALLAGHER
Newburgh, NY
President and owner, Gallagher Transportation
Services; Member of the Retirement Committee

PAULJ. GANCI
Poughkeepsie, NY
President and Chief Operating Officer, Member
of thc Executive Committee and the Committees
on Finance and on Compensation and
Succession

JOHN M. KINGSLAND
Boston, MA
Private Investor, Director of Sealed Air
Corporation and of First American Bancorp,
Inc.; Member of the Committees on Finance and
on Audit

CHARLES LaFORGE
Rhinebeck, NY
President of Wayfarer Inns and owner of
Beekman Arms; Member of the Committee on
Finance

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the Executive and
Retirement Committees

HOWARD C. ST. JOHN

Vice Chairman of the Board and Chairman of
the Committee on Finance

MARJORIE S. BROWN
Chairwoman of the Committee on
Compensation and Succession

H. EYMAN
RIC~
Chairman of the Committee on Audit
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Gould &Wilkie
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Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Oflicer
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Officer

WILLIAME. VanWAGENEN
Senior Vice President-Administration and
Governmental Affairs

CARL E. MEYER
Vice President.Engineering and Production

ALLANR. PAGE
Vice President-Customer Services

GLADYS L COOPER
Secretary
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DRAIN

Treasurer

ERIC M. MARIKLL
Controller

JOSEPH J. DeVIRGILIO,JR
Assistant Vice Prcsidcnt-Human Resources

HERBERT M. ROUND
Assistant Vice Prcsidcnt.Nuclear Operations,
Energy Control, and Operations Services

JAMES E. SMITH
Assistant Vice President

WALTERA. BOSSERT, JR.
Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer

CHARLES H. DENNY, JR
Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary

JOHN E. MACKIII**
Poughkeepsie, NY
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman of the Executive and
Retirement Committees and Member of the
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HOWARD C. ST. JOHN
Glenford, NY
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer, Ulster Savings Bank; Lawyer, Howard C.
St. John & Associates; Vice Chairman of the
Board; Chairman of the Committee on Finance;
Member of the Executive Committee and the
Committee on Audit

Did not stand for reelection 4/4/89
Chairman of the Board 4/4/89

'* Elected

AFFIRMATIVEACfION POLICY
Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation affirms that equal opportunity shall be provided for
all persons. This means that all personnel policies and practices, including those related to
compensation, benefits, transfers, promotions, training, tuition assistance and social and recreational
programs, shall be administered without regard to race, color, age, scx or national origin. Recruiting
and hiring practices shall bc administered to assure fulfillmentof the Company's equal employment
opportunity objective.
Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corporation affirms that it will not discriminate against any employee
or applicant for cmploymcnt because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for

which the individual is qualified.'11iis means that all personnel policies and practices, including
those related to employment, promotion, demotion or transfer, training, compensation, benefits and
termination, shall be administered without discrimination based upon physical or mental handicap
against qualilied handicapped individuals.
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